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FOREWORD
Scope and reporting boundary
The information presented in this report describes SAIPA as well as
the five regions that make up the national footprint, including their
associated districts.
This report presents the activities and Annual Financial Statements of
SAIPA for the year ended 31 December 2015. It also describes the
strategic focus and how this aligns with the way that SAIPA creates
value. We discuss our business, issues within the environment, risks
and opportunities.
In summary, the report presents material information needed for
stakeholders to understand SAIPA.
Disclaimer
Some of the statements in the Annual Integrated Report constitute
forward-looking statements. These are not guarantees or predictions
of future performance. As discussed in the report, the business faces
risks and factors outside of our control, which may lead to outcomes
unforeseen by the Institute. These are not reflected in the report.
Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forwardlooking statements.
Assurance
The Annual Financial Statements have been audited by our external
auditors. At this stage we have not sought independent verification of
the other metrics reported in our Annual Integrated Report although
our external auditors have reviewed it for reasonableness.
Feedback
SAIPA welcomes your feedback on our Annual Integrated Report.
Please email your comments and suggestions to air@saipa.co.za.
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ABOUT SAIPA

SAIPA at a glance
The South African Institute of Professional Accountants (SAIPA)
is one of the leading accountancy institutes, representing and
supporting its members to fulfil the increasing demands of business
in South Africa’s growing economy by equipping the Professional
Accountant (SA) with the latest knowledge, techniques and
accreditation required to render key services.
SAIPA has been a pioneer in the South African economy,
contributing to the advancement of the accountancy profession,
influencing legislation and constantly transforming to keep abreast
of business, financial and social developments both nationally and
internationally.
SAIPA is a member of the International Federation of Accountants
(IFAC) and the Pan African Federation of Accountants (PAFA).
SAIPA qualifications are nationally recognised at Level 8 by the
National Qualifications Framework (NQF) in terms of the South
African Qualifications Authority (SAQA).
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Vision

To be the Professional
Accountancy organisation of choice.

Mission

To optimise the success of the
Professional Accountant (SA) in the public interest.

Values
Integrity
Ethics
Professionalism
Excellence
Value people
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CHAIRMAN’S

Report

Transformation in Transition
When my Board colleagues saw fit to elect me as Chairman, I was
grateful for the opportunity to lead a group of seasoned men and
women that was well versed in the principles of good corporate
governance and leadership. Mindful of our beloved country’s
demographic profile, I was particularly inspired by the fact that
SAIPA had, of its own initiative, pioneered transformation in its
leadership, and that my appointment as Chairman was not a mere
act of convenience. In stepping up to the responsibility conferred
upon me, I realised how important it would be for SAIPA to
steadfastly continue pursuing an all-encompassing transformation
agenda to further strengthen its relevance locally and internationally.
In promoting the inevitable changes upon which we need to
embark, I resolve to remain sensitive to the fact that change
and the consequent disruption of the status quo is often a very
challenging experience, which is likely to fill many of our members
with apprehension. Although we will move ahead with due caution
and with appreciation for the ambivalent feelings our members
may harbour, we will not neglect our responsibility to prevent past
achievements from being washed away. In 1994, we set foot on
a difficult and irreversible journey that is increasingly leading us
away from what previously was a local and linear world to one
that is global and exponential. We cannot stay ahead of the waves
of change that are constantly pounding our world by clinging to
the strategies and policies of the past. Were we to do this, SAIPA
would be washed aside, soon becoming an anachronism.
After grappling with the question whether change, which often is
characterised as a constant, could be a project with defined start
and end points, and milestones, I concluded that change, despite
its esoteric nature, requires that it should be treated as a project
with clear and measurable goals.
In addition to the bold steps that were taken to meaningfully
transform the SAIPA Board and management, there were the
hitherto unprecedented decisions to elect three successive female
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members as Chairman. These bold initiatives have undoubtedly
placed our organisation on a strong growth path, as attested to by
the continuing increase in our membership numbers.
The changes that needed to be effected during 2015 were
hampered by the inevitable apprehension of many of our members.
The Board, ever mindful of member sensitivities, sought to deal with
member apprehension by employing disciplines such as ‘Project
Management’ to facilitate the responsible and effective execution
of these essential changes. As Chairman, I am extremely thankful
to my fellow Board Members who are resolute in their support of
ethical principles. The Board most ably guided the organisation
through a time of a turbulent change. What particularly impressed
me was that the Board never, despite the going getting tougher and
tougher, shied away from its responsibilities.
I am extremely grateful to all Board and Committee members for
the outstanding service they render on behalf of all our members.
During the course of 2015, the Chairmen of the various working
committees repeatedly proved their mettle, thereby confirming the
trust that members had expressed when electing them. Throughout
the year, Board members eagerly gave of their time and energy to
research, test and synthesise information as a basis for responsible
decision making. Their commitment was probably best captured
by the immediate past SAIPA Chairman, Shirley Olsen, when she
very aptly commented, “Our common love for SAIPA bound us
together in our commitment to the task entrusted to us by our
fellow members”.
The Board resolved not to renew the CEO’s contract, which was
last renewed in 2011, and was due to expire in 2016. Following
lengthy discussions between the Board and the CEO, an agreement
was reached to conclude the CEO’s contract before the 2016
expiry date. As Chairman and a member of the Board, I wish
to extend to Mr Daniels the sincere appreciation of the Board
and of our members for the very meaningful achievements he

recorded during 10 years of service to SAIPA. Amongst his many
achievements, the following are most deserving of mention:
•
•
•
•

gaining and maintaining IFAC affiliation;
gaining and maintaining PAFA affiliation;
conducting different pieces of breakthrough research; and
establishing and expanding the Professional Accountant (SA)
designation and brand.

After concluding the separation agreement with Mr Daniels, the
Board expressed the desire to explore the possibility of working
with him strategically in the future development of SAIPA. The
Board resolved to sponsor Mr Daniels in his role as a member
of the IFAC Development Committee. Whereas this is not an
institutional role, it does strengthen SAIPA’s profile.
We are in the process of augmenting the different Memoranda of
Understanding that were signed during the past number of years.
Our intention is to draw up Mutual Recognition Agreements (MRAs)
that include clear guidelines on how SAIPA members could practise
in these countries. As an example, the MRA that was signed with
Ireland in 2015, has already resulted in a number of our members
now practising in Ireland. In this regard, I am particularly heartened
by the appreciation our members have expressed by virtue of
a flood of emails. As your elected Board, we intend to prioritise
countries in accordance with the member feedback we receive.
South Africa being a springboard into Africa for European countries
wishing to invest in the continent accentuates the importance of
the Africa Growth and Opportunity Act of 2000. In this regard,
our close alliance with the Namibian Institute of Professional
Accountants (NIPA) is a worthy example, as it exemplifies our
commitment in the spirit of Ubuntu.
Our membership of IFAC entails much more than the mere
recognition it affords us, as it also affords us opportunities to
partner and work together with other like-minded organisations
across the international spectrum of our profession. As a
consequence, our members enjoy opportunities beyond the
borders of our country.
Whereas paragraphs 13 and 23 of the ROSC Report point to the
fact that Accounting Practitioners in South Africa are not regulated,
paragraph 2 acknowledges the reforms that have been made to
the South African financial reporting systems, placing South Africa
first in an Annual Competitive Survey for the fifth consecutive
year. Although there are many things in South Africa that could be
deemed to be wrong, there are thankfully many more things that
are good. Maintaining our current exemplary status is destined to
become increasingly difficult unless PAOs and Practitioners move
away from operating in silos where they are largely oblivious of
each other’s value offering.
Regulating accountants in Commerce and Industry is increasingly
important if the South African Accountancy Profession is to
uphold its current high status. Our Government needs to pass
the necessary legislation and draw up and implement related
regulations, which will require all practising and employed
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accountants to be members of an accredited body. In pursuance of
this goal, SAIPA stands ready to not only welcome new members
into our profession, but to also afford them the support they need
to optimally realise their potential and professionally execute their
responsibilities. This will require that we strengthen our Secretariat
to welcome such new members, provide them with the necessary
technical support, and monitor them in the execution of their task.
As I previously noted, our survival and future is heavily dependent
on relinquishing our silo mentality. The gradual demise of the
old style family businesses, which is something we are currently
witnessing, necessitates diversified leadership if we are to
maintain our future relevance. With financial markets becoming
increasingly sophisticated and complex, accountants need to not
only continuously deepen their core technical skills, but also move
towards increased specialisation. These developments underscore
the importance of the Collaboration Agreement, which we signed
with SAICA on 5 March 2015. This agreement embodies the
following six objectives:
• becoming united partners in drafting the Accountancy 		
Professions Bill and related regulations, thereby becoming a
single and united voice for the accountancy profession;
• leveraging economies of scale in the administration of the
accountancy profession;
• establishing a joint educational team to structure the future
educational model for the accountancy profession;
• creating mechanisms that counter the leakage of skills from the
accountancy profession;
• working towards the rationalisation and transformation of the
accountancy profession; and
• ensuring the preservation of the unique identities of SAIPA and
SAICA under a single umbrella body with a symbol that
emphasises a common vision.
In signing the aforesaid Collaboration Agreement, the Board
was not intent on effecting a merger, but merely to meaningfully
respond to the recommendations of the ROSC report, which
highlighted South Africa’s current standing in relation to global
best practices. During the discussions, the parties arrived at a
clear understanding of the need for the South African Accountancy
Profession to align its practices to global trends to remain relevant.

SAIPA and SAICA appreciated that this would not only make global
trade easier, but also decrease perceived red tape, and increase
member mobility.
Without in any way detracting from the ROSC Report, it is important
that this report is but one of two very important game changers
with regard to the future of the accountancy profession. The second
is the New Companies Act. Although the initial perception was that
the New Companies Act would restrict the Professional Accountant
(SA) market, it has in reality increased this market. We need to
commend the Secretariat for the sterling work that it has done to
increase the PI score with regard to the Independent Review and
compilation brackets, as this should ensure a continuous expansion
in the market available to Professional Accountants (SA).
Recent student protests under the banner of ‘Fees Must Fall’ is
yet another game changer. This has been a rude awakening, as
the millennial generation has underscored the need to constantly
explore new and creative ways of doing what needs to be done
in a quicker and more efficient manner. This quest for economic
emancipation, which is echoing loudly and clearly across South
Africa, involves all South Africans, regardless of race or age. A new
normal is rapidly being established, which calls upon us as leaders
to ensure that we create new opportunities and platforms that
contribute to a fairer and more equitable way of being.
The horrific consequence of the protracted drought ravaging our
country is sadly having a very serious impact on the lives of all
South Africans. Our hearts go out to those who are seeing their
livelihoods eroded by forces of nature beyond their control. I
call upon all our members to do whatever they can, no matter
how limited, to assist fellow South Africans in weathering this
challenge. Clearly, the consequence of this drought will increasingly
reverberate way beyond the drought stricken areas with the prices
of basic foodstuffs set to rise dramatically, necessitating that we
also support those who consequently experience grave financial
hardship.
In this tsunami-like world, we find ourselves in a race against
time to more rapidly and efficiently effect crucial and meaningful
changes. In this rush to get things done more quickly and efficiently,
different generations across the work place are finding common
ground. With the younger generation ever more strongly asserting
itself, many past practices are being questioned. An example is
the marked decrease in the average age of Board members, as
well as an increase in diversity. This environment has afforded
transformation a fresh lease of life.
Once accountants in commerce and industry are subject to
regulation, this will draw a further stream of new members into
SAIPA, questioning our readiness to accommodate such new
members. If SAIPA is to play its part in accelerating economic
empowerment, it will need to ensure that it is ready to welcome
and fast-track these members into an accountancy career. This
will necessitate that SAIPA not only strengthens their accountancy
insights and skills, but has the capacity to mentor these members.
This will require of every SAIPA member to account to himself
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or herself how he or she is supporting and promoting the career
path of these new members. Furthermore, this will also require
that SAIPA affords its trainees similar attention. As members, we
will need to regularly take stock of whether we are empowering
our trainees in a responsible and sustainable manner, and whether
we are optimally equipping them to meaningfully contribute to the
future success of our accountancy practices.
Fortunately, the time is long over when we could shrug off the
fact that those who graduate from our traineeships lack the ability
to interpret financial information, do not possess the necessary
confidence to enter the accountancy market or have not been
empowered to compete for worthy positions. In this regard, SAIPA
is particularly thankful to FASSET for assisting us with the funding
we need to upskill future accountancy professionals.The Secretariat
is deserving of our praise for tirelessly working to develop the
necessary training materials, and for diligently and responsibly
rolling out training in a manner that is sufficiently profitable to
enable us to support further developmental work across
the profession.
The era has ended where we could merely focus on putting
new building blocks in place. Transformation is now our primary
responsibility. Thankfully, SAIPA has elevated transformation to the
status where it is an ongoing responsibility of all our members, and
is no longer seen as taboo. The recognition that SAIPA receives
from its peers and other organisations testifies to the fact that it
has increasingly become a noteworthy partner in the ‘new South
Africa’ accountancy profession. By continuing to build on the solid
transformation foundation that has been laid by the Board and
Secretariat, SAIPA has become a force to be reckoned with in all
spheres of our profession. If all our members continue working
together with the Board and Secretariat, SAIPA is assured of
attaining the growth targets to which it aspires.
Should SAIPA succeed in growing its membership to the extent we
envisage, it will not only afford us a stronger voice in the profession,
but also ensure that we realise the value proposition to which our
founding fathers aspired. Within 34 years, SAIPA has not only
justified its existence, but has also firmly established itself as an
organisation of note on the national and international accountancy
stages. SAIPA has reached a level of maturity where it should now
soar on the wings of its strengths!

suffering, and would render us increasingly irrelevant. Our only
salvation in weathering such storms is to continue growing our
membership.
Although I appreciate the financial and time constraints that often
prevent our members from availing themselves of serving in SAIPA
governance structures, I wish to encourage them to take up this
challenge of assisting us to further grow this great organisation.
I am deeply thankful to those members who step up to this
challenge and not only serve on our national structures, but also to
our highly important Regional and District committees.
By working shoulder to shoulder, we as members can transcend
the barriers that have historically set us apart. Together, we can
build the bridges that span these divides and ultimately tie us
together as fellow South African Professional Accountants, thereby
also creating a society in which the legacy of racism and sexism
is forever banished. In doing this together, we would be living the
dream of the greatest leader to have ever walked the shores of our
beautiful continent, Nelson Mandela. Please join me, the Board and
the Secretariat in realising his lofty dream.
To all members of the Board, the Secretariat, Committees, RADAC
leaders, chairpersons and others serving in SAIPA governance
structures, I wish to extend my sincere appreciation for their
uncompromising commitment to SAIPA and to the wellbeing of
our members. The fact that these members volunteer their time
and energy to serve on SAIPA structures, makes their contributions
even more memorable and praiseworthy. But, it is to the most
important people in this room that I wish to convey a very special
word of thanks for the trust they have placed in us to lead their
organisation on their behalf; the SAIPA member!
May my time as Chairman be characterised by the following
clarion call:

‘Stronger together’

As members we all share the common challenge of ensuring that
SAIPA continues to receive a strong and constant stream of new
members. By working together with the Board and Secretariat,
we need to optimise our resources and influence to attract new
professionals into our Institute.
Due to the very open nature of our economy, and our strong
reliance on commodity exports, our currency has of late
experienced a steep downward trend, which has unfortunately
resulted in SAIPA being exposed to increased costs for the delivery
of its product and services to members. Although we would prefer
this to not be the case, it is not an option to stand aside from
the global world, as this would exacerbate the damage we are

Cindy S Dibete
SAIPA Chairman (2015)
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

Report

We have come to the end of another historic year that was
marred by various events that have had a profound impact on
the South African economy. During this year, we experienced
a series of electricity load shedding events that have had a
detrimental impact on the sustainability of many businesses,
specifically small and medium enterprises. Thankfully, load
shedding has of late become a rare occurrence.
The weakening of the rand has continued throughout the year,
with our currency sinking to levels previously not experienced.
This has been exacerbated by a drought, which is the
worst in twenty years, resulting in steep increases in food
prices and the need to import maize and wheat. Due to the
inevitable inflationary pressures which these occurrences have
precipitated, the Reserve Bank has been left with no alternative
but to raise interest rates. Together, these factors pose very
serious challenges for South African businesses, especially to
small and medium enterprises.
Contrary to expectations, the decline in the oil price to record
lows did not result in the expected positive impact on the global
economy. Stock markets responded with a succession of large
declines, wiping trillions off the market cap of companies. This
negative sentiment was further fueled by ongoing wars that
have caused untold destruction and human suffering. Together
with the ongoing decline in the Chinese growth rate, which has
severely impacted its need for commodities, global trade and
the economic outlook in Africa has meaningfully weakened.
Given the weak rand, the drought and depressed commodity
prices, South Africa finds itself in an extremely trying situation,
which is unlikely to meaningfully change for the better in the
near future. With the dwindling revenue stream, the Government
faces a major challenge to prevent a steep increase in its deficit
before borrowing, as this could result in a further downgrade of
Government debt by the different ratings agencies. The rather
bleak situation is further exacerbated by the possibility that the
bilateral trade agreement between the United States and South
Africa (AGOA) may not be renewed.
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SAIPA is well aware of the impact the local and global economic
conditions have for the wellbeing of our members, and is fully
committed to supporting its members during these trying times,
whilst remaining cognisant that the organisation at all times adheres
to the very highest standards of compliance with legislation and
the requirements of the International Federation of Accountants
(IFAC). This we achieved by virtue of meaningful representation in
stakeholder bodies, and by exploring partnerships that will nationally
and internationally benefit our members.
IFAC has commenced with the process for the enforcement
of the Statements of Membership Obligations (SMOs). This
requires its affiliate members to ensure that they comply with
these international standards by monitoring the performance of
their members. PAOs furthermore need to ensure that they work
towards realising the goal of IFAC and the Auditor General to
effect continuous improvement in the public finance competencies
of those in the accountancy profession. The recommended
amendments to the education standards proposed by the IEASB,
which require a competency based assessment as the exit level
examination for the profession, has necessitated that SAIPA
implement these recommendations with effect from
November 2015.
Collaborative agreements signed during the year
To strengthen its position in the accountancy profession, it is
essential that SAIPA engages and collaborates with stakeholders
and role players to complement its offerings and strengthen its
national and international standing. When selecting collaborative
partners, the benefits are carefully weighed using a three pronged
approach. This approach considers the benefits for the SAIPA
members, the benefits for the Institute, and the combined benefits
both members and the institute would derive. During 2015,
agreements were signed, of which the following are examples:
The Collaborative Stakeholder Movement pledge
In pursuance of its commitment to ethics and to taking a strong
stand on fighting corruption, SAIPA signed the Collaborative
Stakeholder Movement’s (CSM) Anti-Corruption Pledge at the
beginning of the year. The CSM is a platform where diverse leaders
and stakeholders can constructively engage on matters of common
cause. By signing this pledge, SAIPA publically commits to using all
of its resources and influence to assist South Africa in eradicating
corruption.
Collaborative agreement with SAICA
In April, a collaborative agreement was signed with the South
African Institute of Chartered Accountants (SAICA). Although
SAIPA and SAICA have jointly participated in certain initiatives, this
remains a very informal and unstructured agreement. In signing this
collaborative agreement, the two organisations are working towards
formalising their relationship by virtue of the six primary objectives
mentioned in the Chairman’s report.
This collaboration has the full support of the Boards of both
institutes and is the outcome of numerous meetings. As part of this
process, a Joint Education Task Team has been set up to conduct
in-depth research into the needs of the South African accountancy

industry, and to inform the processes towards the regulation of
the profession, as recommended in the Report on Observance of
Standards and Codes (ROSC).
Memorandum of Understanding with the Association of
BEE Professionals
In response to an initiative by the Department of Trade and
Industry (DTI) to professionalise the BEE industry, SAIPA entered
into an agreement with the newly established Association of BEE
Professionals (ABP), which provides for our members to become
members of ABP at a reduced rate, and for the members of both
organisations to share each other’s resources. This also affords us
a single point of contact with the Department of Trade and Industry
and the Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment industry, also
contributing to the professionalisation and regulation of the BEE
industry. SAIPA has two seats on the ABP board, and is involved
in the development of professional routes for BEE verification,
consulting and related services. At the launch of ABP on 28 July
2015, Prof. Eltie Links of Stellenbosch University commended
SAIPA for its collaboration. He furthermore emphasised the
importance of established professional bodies partnering with new
bodies to share their experience and expertise.
Mutual Recognition Agreement with CPA Ireland
As reported by the Chairman, SAIPA further strengthened its
international standing by signing a Mutual Recognition Agreement
with CPA Ireland. As part of the agreement, CPA Ireland will offer
a Certificate in International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(IPSAS) to strengthen the capacity of professionals in the Public
Sector that have adopted, or are in the process of adopting, the
IPSAS framework. Most worthy of mention is that this agreement
permits our members to write the IPSAS examination and thereby
become recognised Public Sector Professionals.
Human Resources
A key pillar in the SAIPA strategy is to continuously enhance the
competence and capability of Secretariat staff, all staff being
remunerated on a total cost to company basis. This involves
staff development by way of regular education and engagement
sessions, in-house and external training, and career and study
support.
During the year, a new Education, Training and Membership
Executive was appointed - Professor Rashied Small, as well as a
Tax Manager in the SAIPA Centre for Tax Excellence - Sibusiso
Thungo. Both these new appointees have brought much needed
experience and skills to their respective departments.
IT/CRM
After its launch in 2014, the Customer Relations Management
(CRM) system, which is known as the SAIPA Briefcase, has
become a firm favourite amongst our members. By expanding
the functionality, our members are now able to manage their
profiles, CPD hours, book for events, and access our client care
offering. Despite these improvements, we continue to explore new
ways of improving our service delivery, and are planning further
enhancements.
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RADAC
The second Regional and District Associations Committee (RADAC)
gathering, which was held in October 2015, focused on the overall
SAIPA strategy and opportunities for enhancing member service in
the regions. We take pleasure in commending the tireless efforts of
our regional and district committee members in this regard.
SMEasy/Finfind
Our association with SMEasy and Finfind has afforded SAIPA
members opportunities to access the SMME market and
consequently grow their practices.
National Accounting Olympiad (NAO)
A long standing SAIPA initiative, the National Accounting Olympiad,
has continued to gain recognition in 2015. The 353 schools in
the nine SAIPA regions contributed a record of 3 334 entrants, an
increase of 521 on the number of entrants for 2014. SAIPA board
members and leaders from the public and private sector attended a
gala function to celebrate the six national winners.
ISO 9001: 2008
SAIPA is a proud ISO 9001 accredited body, only one of a small
few professional bodies to have been awarded such accreditation.
This International Standard promotes the adoption of a process
approach when developing, implementing and improving
the effectiveness of a quality management system, thereby
enhancing customer satisfaction by meeting customer needs and
requirements. The Legal and Compliance department carries out
regular internal audits to ensure that all departments adhere to this
standard in their day to day activities.
Education and Training
SAIPA now has eleven accredited universities, eight of which have
been provisionally accredited, and three that are fully accredited for
a period of five years. Unfortunately the delay in the appointment
of the Education Training and Membership executive has slightly
delayed our plans to fully accredit all eleven universities. Fortunately,
we are now back on track and all eleven universities will be fully
accredited by the end of 2016.
FASSET funding for Project Achiever
As stated in the Chairman’s report, SAIPA was successful in its
bid for R5.7 million in FASSET funding to assist trainees that have
either completed the SAIPA learnership, have attempted and not
succeeded in the Professional Evaluation (PE), or have never
attempted the PE. Between August 2015 and May 2017, four
groups of 120 each will be enrolled on this programme, which is
based on integrated competency learning, and is aimed at lifelong
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learning, as opposed to once-off assistance. SAIPA-appointed
facilitators will aspire to ensure that learners are able to immediately
apply what they have learnt in their working environment. The
programme is proving to be a huge success, with 88% of the
learners involved in the project passing their PE in November
2015. Although FASSET only funds black Africans participating in
the programme, SAIPA has opened participation to all trainees at a
subsidised rate.
Professional Evaluation
In order to improve the quality and competence of aspiring
Professional Accountants (SA), the nature and style of the
Professional Evaluation (PE) was changed with effect from May
2015. The number of candidates writing both the PE in May and
November dropped in relation to previous periods. In May 2015,
73% of the 398 that wrote the PE passed, whereas 90% of the
502 who wrote the PE in November 2015, passed. What was
particularly heartening is that SAIPA’s transformation strategies led
to an increase in Black candidates from 24% in previous years to
36% in the November 2015, with a pass rate of 89%. Not only
were the top two performers in the November 2015 examination
SAIPA trainees, but they were also Black candidates.
Legal Compliance and Ethics
In keeping with our institutional values of integrity, ethics,
excellence, professionalism and valuing people, the Legal,
Compliance and Ethics department has been hard at work to
ensure that these values are actualised. Consequently, SAIPA has
significantly stepped up its member compliance monitoring. This
has resulted in a number of members that have not complied with
finance, CPD and legal requirements being brought to book. This
has led to 567 registered members being struck off our register,
10% thereof having applied for re-instatement.
Complaints, Investigations and Discipline
In excess of 100 complaints were received during the year from
the public, clients of our members, government departments and
other professional bodies. Thirty-two of these complaints were
handed to our investigations committee, and four were singled out
for disciplinary action by our Disciplinary committee. Depending on
the nature of the offence, those found guilty will either be fined or
struck off the register.
Conclusion
In many respects, 2015 was a challenging, but also rewarding,
year. We are thankful to not only have broken new ground from a
financial perspective, but also for the initiatives that we undertook,
and for our achievements.

I wish to thank the Board for the confidence they have shown in
my ability to lead the Institute during this interim period. Without the
sterling support that I receive from the Chairman, Ms Cindy Dibete,
the members of the Executive Committee, past and present board
members; RADAC, and many other members of the Institute, I
would not have succeeded in my task.
My report would be incomplete without expressing my sincere
appreciation for the loyal support I receive from a wonderful team
of fellow executives and all the staff members. The resilience
they have demonstrated has made 2015 a successful year. In
conclusion, a special word of thanks must go to my hard working
assistant, Lindie Swindon, for facilitating a smooth transition from
the previous leadership.
As a Secretariat, we wholeheartedly commit to making 2016 an
even better year for all our members.

Faith Ngwenya
SAIPA Acting Chief Executive
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CORPORATE

Governance
THE BOARD
The Board is the focal point of SAIPA’s corporate governance
system and remains ultimately accountable and responsible for
its performance. The Board endorses the principle of openness,
integrity, sustainability, transparency, fairness, responsibility and
accountability advocated by the King Code of Governance for
South Africa (King III). The Board ensures that SAIPA is managed
effectively in accordance with corporate governance best
practice and higher ethical standards.
The Board currently has thirteen members. A short curriculum
vitae of each of the Board members appears on pages 21 to 26
of the Annual Report. The Board is led by Ms Cindy S Dibete as
Chairman. The Acting Chief Executive is Ms Faith Ngwenya.
The Board has a charter which is reviewed annually and sets
out the specific responsibilities to be collectively discharged
by Board members, as well as the individual roles expected of
Board members.
The Board meets quarterly; additional Board meetings, apart
from those planned, are convened as circumstances dictate. The
meeting attendance schedule is set out on the next page.
BOARD COMMITTEES
A number of Board-appointed committees have been
established to assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities.
Notwithstanding the establishment of the various committees,
the Board reserves for itself a range of key matters to ensure
that it retains proper direction and control of SAIPA.
The Board is of the view that all the Board committees have
effectively discharged their responsibilities, as contained in their
respective terms of reference.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND ATTENDANCE OF BOARD MEETINGS
Name of Board Member

Number of Meetings Attended

Date of Appointment/
Retirement

Ms Cindy S Dibete - Chairman

Four out of four meetings

12 June 2013

Mr Muhammad O Seedat - Deputy Chairman

Four out of four meetings

12 June 2013

Ms Faith Ngwenya

Two out of two meetings

19 August 2015

Mr Shahied Daniels

Two out of two meetings

Resigned 31 August 2015

Ms Vuyelwa Sangoni

Three out of four meetings

7 November 2013

Ms Nontobeko Ntsinde

Three out of four meetings

7 November 2013

Mr Altaaf Parker

Four out of four meetings

13 March 2012

Mr Benjamin Tamba

Four out of four meetings

23 August 2011

Mr Thami Kubheka

Four out of four meetings

30 May 2012

Mr Avhashoni Ramikosi

Four out of four meetings

10 March 2014

Mr Yaeesh Yasseen

Three out of three meetings

10 June 2015

Mr Shreef Abass

Three out of three meetings

10 June 2015

Ms Kantha Naicker

Four out of four meetings

10 June 2015

Mr Philip Pieterse

Four out of four meetings

10 June 2015

Mr Richard Ludwig1

Three out of four meetings

Executive Committee
The primary role of the Executive Committee (“Exco”) is to provide
support and advice to the Chief Executive on strategic matters
and, if needed, on operational matters. The members of Exco are
appointed by the Board, and consist of four members of the Board;
the Chairman of the Board chairs this Committee. Exco meets at
least four times per annum, and the Chairman reports formally to
the Board on its proceedings after each meeting.
Audit Risk Committee
The primary role of the Audit Risk Committee (“the ARC”), which
is chaired by a member of the Board, is to assist the Board in
discharging its responsibility in safeguarding SAIPA’s assets,
maintaining adequate accounting records and developing and
maintaining an effective risk management strategy to manage
internal control. The ARC, in carrying out its duties, has due
regard to the principles of governance and code of best practice
contained in King III. The ARC oversees SAIPA’s risk management
programme, the effectiveness of internal control, and adequacy,
reliability and accuracy of financial information provided.
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee
The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee was
established to ensure that SAIPA has a human resources
strategy aligned to the overall business strategy, that SAIPA
has remuneration policies and practices that enable it to attract
and retain staff who will create value for the members, and
that SAIPA fairly and responsibly rewards staff having regard to
the performance of both SAIPA and staff. This is to ensure that
remuneration and human resources policies and practice are in
accordance with best practice.
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Nominations Committee
The primary function of the Nominations Committee (“Nomcom”)
is to recommend candidates for election or appointment to the
SAIPA Board and its committees, as well as to establish and
operate a process of continual assessment and review of the
profile, membership and needs of the Board and its Committees in
terms of the essential and desirable skills, competences and other
qualities of their (the Board’s and its Committees’) members, with
due regard to the need for diversity, racial and gender equality and
sound corporate governance prescribed in the SAIPA Constitution.
The Chairman of the Board chairs this Committee.
Social and Ethics Committee
The primary role of the Social and Ethics Committee, which is
chaired by a member of the Board, is to monitor SAIPA’s activities,
having regard to any relevant legislation, other legal requirements
or prevailing codes of best practice, in respect of matters relating
to, amongst others, social and economic development, including
SAIPA’s standing in terms of the goals and purposes of good
corporate citizenship, including SAIPA’s promotion of equality,
prevention of unfair discrimination and reduction of corruption.
Board Secretary
The Board Secretary assists the Board and its Committees in
fulfilling their functions and is empowered by the Board to perform
his duties. The Board Secretary also assists the Chairman and the
Chief Executive in determining the annual board plan and board
agendas and in formulating governance and board-related matters.

BOARD COMMITTEES COMPOSITION AND ATTENDANCE OF BOARD COMMITTEES MEETINGS
Committee Member

Executive
Committee

Audit Risk
Committee

Human Resources and
Remuneration
Committee

Nominations
Committee

Social and
Ethics
Committee

Number of meetings attended
Ms Cindy S Dibete2

11 out of 11

2 out of 3

Mr Muhammad O Seedat3

11 out of 11

1 out of 1

Ms Faith Ngwenya

11 out of 11

2 out of 2

Ms Vuyelwa Sangoni

2 out of 2

Ms Nontobeko Ntsinde

2 out of 3

2 out of 3

3 out of 3

Mr Yaeesh Yasseen5

3 out of 3

1 out of 2
10 out of 11

Mr Avhashoni Ramikosi

3 out of 3

Mr Benjamin Tamba
Mr Altaaf Parker6

1 out of 2

3 out of 3

Mr Philip Pieterse4

Mr Thami Kubheka

2 out of 2

2 out of 3
11 out of 11

Mr Shreef Abass7

2 out of 3

Ms Kantha Naicker

3 out of 3
Independent non-Board members

Ms Shirley Bahula-Ermias

2 out of 3

Mr Charl de Kock

2 out of 3

Ms Romeshni Govender

2 out of 3

Mr Ram Naidoo8

1 out of 1

Ms Shirley Olsen

9

4 out of 4

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

1 out of 1

Mr Joseph M Tshiwilowilo

2 out of 3

Ms Parmi Natesan

3 out of 3

Prof Leon van Vuuren

3 out of 3

Prof Deon Rossouw
1

1 out of 1

3 out of 3

Observer;
Appointed with effect from 10 June 2015;
Term of office on Nominations Committee expired on 10 June 2015;
Appointed with effect from 10 June 2015;
Appointed to the Board and Audit and Risk Committee with effect from 10 June 2015;
Term of office expired on 10 June 2015 and reappointed thereafter;
Appointed with effect from 10 June 2015;
Term of office expired on 10 June 2015;
Term of Office expired on 10 June 2015 and appointed thereafter as an independent
non-board member.
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From left to right:
A Ramikosi
A Parker
P T Kubheka
V Sangoni
F Ngwenya (Acting Chief Executive)
C S Dibete (Chairman)
M O Seedat (Deputy Chairman)
R Ludwig (Observer)
K Naicker
S Abass
P Pieterse
N Ntsinde
Y Yasseen
Absent: B Tamba
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Cindy S Dibete (40)
Chairman
National Diploma in Cost and Management Accounting with
Business Communication for Non-Degree purposes; Professional
Accountant (SA). Basic (foundation) coaching certificate; currently
studying towards a Master’s in Business Administration with Henley.
Board Committees:
• Chairman – Executive Committee; and
• Chairman – Nomination Committee.
Appointed to the Board on 12 June 2013.
Professional Profile
As founder and CEO of D’bete Professional Accountants, Cindy
has a proven record of enterprise systems development. This has
enabled her to assist entrepreneurs, at a strategic level, to better
manage their businesses. As a Professional Accountant (SA), she
continues to lead initiatives that have contributed towards increased
profits, productivity and value preservation within these entities.
Motivated by ethical behaviour and understanding administration
as a backbone of any entity’s good performance, Cindy has started
and led an accounting practice realising year on year growth while
advancing a team of specialists from trainee status. The same now
affords her time to dedicate to other projects investing her time
for greater good. She introduced Corporate Governance within
her practice and gained business and respect from companies
such as iBurst Africa, Wits Enterprise and The Wits Business
School to name a few. Cindy is able to build highly motivated
management teams who are focused on achieving revenue goals
through innovative models. She keeps up to date with changes
in the industry through continuing professional development and
participating in industry forums and initiatives.
Other directorships/Board memberships
• Chairman and Board Member of the Finance Committee of the
Polokwane Housing Association; and
• Director D’bete Group of Companies.

Other directorships/Board memberships
• The Association for the Advancement of Black Accountants of
Southern Africa (ABASA).

Altaaf Parker (49)
B Compt (Hons)
Board Committees:
• SAIPA Board; and
• Executive Committee.
Appointed to the Board in 2011.
Professional Profile
Altaaf is a registered Professional Accountant (SA) and is the sole
member of A Parker & Associates CC, providing accounting and tax
services, based in Cape Town. He completed his auditing articles with
M Brey and Associates CA (SA).
Other directorships/Board memberships
• Member of SAIPA WRA; and
• Sits on the SARS Practitioners Forum (WC).

Philip Pieterse (42)
B. Com (Honours) (NMMU/UPE); Postgraduate Advanced Certificate
in Taxation (UNISA).
Professional Accountant (SA)
Board Committees:
• Nominations Committee.
• Social and Ethics Committee.
Appointed to the Board on 1 July 2015.

Certificate of Theory in Accounting (CTA) – University of
Kwazulu Natal; and
Bachelor of Accounting Degree in Accounting – University of
Cape Town.

Professional Profile
Philip is a director and shareholder at PFG and Associates, an
accounting firm providing accounting, tax and other advisory services
to small and medium size enterprises in, predominantly, the Eastern
Cape. The firm has been in existence for approximately twenty two
years, of which he has been a partner for ten years. Previously, Philip
was employed by Rocklands Poultry (part of listed concern Sovereign
Foods Ltd), Arthur Andersen and Rand Merchant Bank in various
accounting and tax related positions.

Board Committees:
• Chairman – Human Resources and Remuneration Committee.

He is also involved in several other businesses relating to property,
specialised tax services and business brokerage.

Appointed to the Board on 7 November 2013.

Other directorships/Board memberships
• Erf 2491 Newton Park (Pty) Ltd;
• PFG and Associates (Pty) Ltd; and
• Scorpius Investments (Pty) Ltd.

Vuyelwa Sangoni (33)

Professional Profile
Vuyelwa graduated from University of Cape Town and qualified as
a Chartered Accountant in 2009 after serving articles at Deloitte
& Touche. She has spent six years at Deloitte and Touche. In June
2013 she was appointed as a partner in the Financial Services
division at Deloitte & Touche.
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Nontobeko M Ntsinde (58)
B. Proc (FH) MBA (Wits).
Board Committees:
• Chairman – Social and Ethics Committee; and
• Human Resources and Remuneration Committee.
Appointed to the Board on 7 November 2013.
Professional Profile
An independent and non-executive director
Other directorships/Board memberships
• Trustee – GEMS; and
• Member – UKZN Council.

Yaeesh is an experienced academic with eight years of experience in
accounting education and syllabus development.
Other directorships/Board memberships
• Academic advisory board Da Vinci Institute (current); and
• Accounting Practices Board (past).

Petros T Kubheka (40)
ND Accounting, Certificate Financial Management and Certificate in
Accountancy, Professional Accountant (SA).
Board Committees:
• Executive Committee
Appointed to the Board on 30 May 2012.

Yaeesh Yasseen (31)

Mr Kubheka is currently the CEO of Khathide Consulting (Pty) Ltd.

BCom (Acc) (Wits), BCom Hons (Wits), MCom (Acc) (Wits),
Professional Accountant (SA), CIA (USA).

Professional Profile
Thami served his articles with KPMG, was the acting CFO and Finance
Manager of Brand South Africa.

Board Committees:
• Audit Risk Committee
Appointed to the Board on 1 July 2015.
Professional Profile
Yaeesh is a Senior Lecturer and Head of the Accounting Division in the
School of Accountancy at the University of the Witwatersrand. He is
currently reading towards his PHD in Finance and Accounting. Yaeesh
co-ordinates the Masters of Commerce in Accountancy programme
and previously co-ordinated the Higher Diploma in Computer Auditing
at Wits. He has also served as an external examiner for a number of
South African Universities on their undergraduate and postgraduate
offerings.
He served his Articles at Ernst and Young and is a Professional
Accountant (SA). Yaeesh has been an executive member of the
Accounting Practices Board and is a panel member of the South
African Institute of Professional Accountant’s (SAIPA) accreditation
and examinations committee. He lectures the Professional Accountant
(SA) Evaluation Preparation (PE) course. He has presented technical
updates as well as academic papers at various local and overseas
conferences.
Yaeesh is a member of the SAIPA accreditation team, which assesses
the programmes and accredits universities on an ongoing basis. He
was part of the review team that provided a quality review of the Cape
Peninsula University of Technology for their programmes offered in
the Department of Accountancy. He had also served as an accounting
expert for the Centre for Higher Education in Lesotho where he was
part of a review team that evaluated franchise accounting qualifications
offered in Lesotho. More recently, he was appointed to the academic
advisory board for the Da Vinci Institute and to the board of SAIPA.
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His last position was CFO of National Arts Council, to which he
was appointed within three months of joining National Arts Council.
Through hard work, he managed to improve the audit opinion from an
adverse to a qualification audit opinion. He laid a good foundation and
implemented systems which resulted in an unqualified audit opinion for
the subsequent year.
Other directorships/Board memberships
• Msunduzi Museum and Ncome Museum; Council member and
Audit Committee member; and
• National Arts Council; Council member, EXCO member and Audit
and Risk Committee Chairperson.

Avhashoni Ramikosi (42)
Bachelor of Commerce (UCT); Bachelor of Commerce Honours;
Certified Theory of Accounting (UNISA); Chartered Accountant (SA);
Higher Diploma in Tax Law (RAU); Higher Diploma in International Tax
Law.
Board Committees:
• Chairman - Audit and Risk Committee and member of
the committee
Appointed to the Board on 10 March 2014.
Professional Profile
Avhashoni is currently the Chief Financial Officer for the South
African Police Service (SAPS). He was a Director at SekelaXabiso
responsible for Business Consulting. He has also worked for the South
African Revenue Service as a Senior Manager responsible for audit
operations. He has also worked for Standard Bank of SA Limited in

their Structured Debt Finance environment on project and structured
finance transactions. He had a short spell as CFO for Vharanani
Properties and Mapitsi Civil Works. Avhashoni completed his articles
of traineeship with PricewaterhouseCoopers in 1998.
Avhashoni was a President of the Association for the Advancement
of Black Accountants in South Africa (ABASA) from 2004 to 2006
where he served on a number of structures at branch and national
level. He was a member of the board for the South African Institute
of Chartered Accountants (SAICA) in the same period, and has also
served on committee structures at the Independent Regulatory Board
of Auditors (IRBA).
Other directorships/Board memberships
• Board member of VBS Mutual Bank and chairman of Audit
Risk Committee; and
• Member of the Council for the University of Limpopo from 2004
to 2008 and a member of the finance and audit committee.

Benjamin Tamba (46)
Benjamin is a full-time National Payroll Manager at Servest Cleaning,
a division of Servest (Pty) Ltd, since May 2013. Prior to joining the
Servest Group, he worked as a Management Accountant at Tata
Africa Steel Processors (Pty) Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of Tata
Africa (Pty) Ltd (2008 – 2013). He also worked as an Accountant
for a number of medium sized organisations such as Misha Projects
and Engineering, Liteworks Technical Training and Education and
the South African Institute of Professional Accountants and also as
Accounts Clerk at Damelin Education Group, at which he studied and
received his Bachelor of Commerce in Accounting degree and
other certificates.
Benjamin has a passion for teaching and training, which he has
been practising mainly at Damelin Management School since 2004,
focusing on accounting related short courses on the NQF levels 4
and 5. He himself also completed, while studying, a three year SAIPA
learnership with Definitive Solutions as Trainee Accountant.

Faith Ngwenya (52)
Master of Accountancy (University of Natal); BCom Honours
(UNISA); BCom (University of Zululand); Professional
Accountant (SA).
Board Committees:
• Ex officio on all SAIPA Board committees, Acting
Chief Executive.
Professional Profile
Faith’s employment career spans from Unilever SA where she held
various positions between the years 1987 and 1994. She joined
Mangosuthu Technikon as a lecturer in 1995 till 2007, when
she joined the University of Johannesburg as a senior lecturer in
Accounting, a post she held until August 2010. She joined SAIPA
as the Technical and Standards Executive in September 2010. In
August 2015, she was appointed the Acting Chief Executive of
SAIPA.
Other directorships/Board memberships
Mrs Ngwenya represents SAIPA on:
• Pan African Federation of Accountants (PAFA) board;
• Edinburgh Group;
• PAFA Planning Human Capital and Finance Committee;
• PAFA standards setters’ forum;
• Forum of Accounting Bodies;
• Johannesburg Chamber of Commerce and Industry board;
• Assurance and Guidance Committee of SAICA;
• Association of BEE Professionals Board; and
• Joint Technical Committee of DTI.

Shreef Abass (59)
BA (UCT); BEd.(UCT); MBA (HULL); CM (SA) (IMM)
Board Committees:
• Social and Ethics Committee.

He has also acted as the external assessor and moderator for
several accredited providers and one professional Institute for payroll
administration, accounting and bookkeeping. As a management and
business consultant, Benjamin has advised clients in the areas of
financial management and budgeting, reconciliation and control of
fixed assets and the implementation of accounting policies
and procedures.

Appointed to the Board in June 2015.

Benjamin is currently also serving as non-executive board member at
the South African Institute of Professional Accountants (SAIPA) board
and also as a partner at Definitive Accounting Solutions.

Shreef also exports foodstuffs mainly to the SADC countries. He is
very active in the industrialisation space and is currently involved
with the setting up of Halaal Industrial Parks.

Appointed to the Board on 23 August 2011.

Shreef started his career as an educationalist and spent 16
years teaching at secondary and tertiary levels. Currently he has
assembled and leads a team of dynamic professionals who have
established and run pre-schools and primary schools with a
multi-faceted curriculum based on high ethics, character building
and laying the foundation for learners to be global citizens.

Professional Profile
Shreef is presently the executive chairman of Spice Mecca Pty Ltd.
He has extensive experience in the Food Manufacturing sector.
He has been involved with the importation of raw materials for
manufacturing as well as the importation of specialised
agricultural products.
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Other Board Memberships
• Executive Chairman – Spice Mecca (Pty) Ltd;		
• Chairman – Western Cape Fine Food Initiative NPC;
• Chairman – International Peace College of South Africa NPC;
• Chairman – JEQ – Institute for the Memorisation of the 		
Quraan;
• Board Member – Faure Development Trust; and
• Board Member – Yusuf Booley Foundation.

Kantha Naicker (42)

Kantha is the joint Managing Director of Evolve Accounting, based
in Westville in Durban. Evolve is a merger of her own practice of 15
years with that of a fellow SAIPA member and launched in
March 2016.
Other directorships/Board memberships
• Invited Council Member – Durban Chamber of Commerce and
Industry (DCCI);
• Board Member – Siwela Sonke Dance Theatre;
• Board Member – Association for BEE Professionals; and
• Trustee – United World Colleges Scholarship Trust of
South Africa.

BCompt (Hons)
Board Committees:
• Human Resources and Remuneration Committee.
Appointed to the Board on 10 June 2015.
Professional Profile
In addition to running her own successful accounting practice,
Kantha is currently serving her second term as a Board member
of the South African Institute of Professional Accountants (SAIPA).
She has served selflessly on the regional structures of SAIPA and is
currently the Vice Chairperson of the EThekwini District Association.
Other positions held regionally include Regional Chair, Convention
Convenor, Convention Speaker’s portfolio and SAIPA regional
student’s forum. Kantha currently serves on the Education, Public
Sector and Transformation committees, was Chairperson of the
Marketing and Communications Committee (2010-2011) and is
currently the Chair of the Technical Committee.
A member of the SMME Committee of the Durban Chamber of
Commerce and Industry, she also serves as an invited member to
the Chamber Council. An advocate of the importance of SMMEs
to our economic development, she was a speaker at the SMME
Conference hosted by the Durban Chamber of Commerce and
Industry in 2012. In addition to holding membership of the Institute
of Directors, Kantha also volunteers her time as a Trustee of the
United World Colleges (UWC) Scholarship Trust of South Africa.
Kantha’s many achievements culminated in a nomination to
represent South Africa at the Stars Symposium in Stein Am Rhein,
Switzerland, in September 2012.
A registered assessor and moderator, she continues to conduct
monitoring and evaluation visits to SAIPA Approved Training
Centres, thereby ensuring that the sector acquires graduates of a
high standard. Kantha has been an invited speaker at numerous
events, conferences and fora. In 2014, Kantha was asked to
join a task team that would look at the professionalisation of the
BEE sector. The culmination of a few months of work saw the
establishment of the Association of BEE Professionals (ABP) in
2015, where Kantha serves as a Board member. In May 2015,
Kantha accepted a request to serve on the Siwela Sonke Dance
Theatre Board. This position is pro-bono.
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Muhammad O Seedat (33)
Biography
Muhammad, a Professional Accountant (SA), matriculated from
Durban High School (DHS) and completed articles with PKF whilst
concurrently attaining a Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting)
degree from University of South Africa (UNISA). During this time,
he served as Chairman of the D and D CA Students’ Society,
amongst other leadership roles within and external of the firm.
On completion of articles, Muhammad was offered roles within a
leading merchant bank or to become shareholder in a Cash and
Carry group, but chose instead to join Ernst & Young (EY) within
Business Risk Services before being headhunted into a Financial
Director role. He subsequently returned to EY as Senior Associate
before re-locating to London as a Financial Analyst for a London
Stock Exchange listed concern. On his return to South Africa, he
founded a Management Consulting and Accountancy practice,
Smartrac, which has grown in leaps and bounds both organically
and by acquisition, spreading its presence nationally.
In addition to current directorships and offices below, Muhammad
has memberships with Association of Black Accountants of South
Africa (ABASA), Black Management Forum (BMF), Institute of
Business Advisors (IBA) and Minara Chamber of Commerce.
He further sits as a board adviser to both private and non-profit
concerns. Muhammad is also an entrepreneur with a proven track
record. His extensive past leadership roles have not been listed.
Board Committees:
• Deputy Chairman of the Board and Board Member: South 		
African Institute of Professional Accountants (SAIPA); and
• Executive Committee.
Other directorships/Board memberships
• Group Managing Director: Smartrac;
• Board Member and Chair of Remuneration Committee: Institute
of Directors (IoD);
• Vice President: Finance, Board Member and Council Member:
Durban Chamber of Commerce and Industry (DCCI);
• Trustee: The Endangered Wildlife Trust;
• Lead Independent Non-Executive Director: KZN Cricket Union;
• Member: Supersmart-E-Solutions CC;

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Director: Yusuf Jamal Inc.;
Director: MBS Accounting Solutions;
Director: Ice Edge Consulting (Pty) Ltd;
Director: Ice Edge Grey Matters Training (Pty) Ltd;
CEO: New World Communications;
Chairperson of the Kwazulu-Natal (KZN) Regional Executive of
the South African Institute of Professional Accountants (SAIPA);
Member of the KZN executive of Institute of Directors (IoD);
Board member of the South African National Halaal Authority (SANHA);
Director: Claverton Hall Body Corporate;
Chairman: Cygnet School Governing Body;
Governor of the Board: Durban Preparatory High School (DPHS);
Executive committee member of Association of Muslim
Accountants and Lawyers (AMAL); and
Member of SARS KZN Regional Professional Bodies
Stakeholders Committee.
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SAIPA

Management
Structure
F Ngwenya
(Acting Chief Executive)

Y Mahomedy
(Chief Operations Officer)

D Gorton
(Finance Executive)

R Small
(ETM Executive)

R Thokan-Mahomed
(Legal, Ethics and Compliance
Manager)
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AUDIT RISK

Committee
Report

We are pleased to present the report of the Audit and Risk
Committee (“The Committee”) of SAIPA for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015.		
The Committee charter
				
		
The Committee has adopted a formal charter that has been
approved by the Board. The Committee has conducted its
affairs in compliance with this mandate and has discharged its
responsibilities contained therein.
							
Composition and membership
			
					
The Committee consists of the following members:
• A Ramikosi, Chairman and Board member;
• Yaeesh Yasseen, Board member;
• Charl de Kock, independent non-Board member;
• Shirley Bahula-Ermias, independent non-Board member, and
• Romeshni Govender, independent non-Board member.
The Board Secretary, Mr Mzolisi Nkumanda, provided secretarial
services.						
Purpose, roles and responsibilities				
			
The purpose of the Committee, which in certain instances
operates in conjunction with the Social and Ethics Committee,
is to:							
• assist the Board in discharging its duties relating to the
safeguarding of assets, the operation of adequate systems,
control and reporting processes, and the preparation of
accurate reporting and financial statements in compliance with
the applicable legal requirements and accounting standards;		
• oversee the activities of, and to ensure co-ordination between,
internal and external audit;
• provide a forum for discussing financial, enterprise-wide,
market, regulatory, safety and other risks and control issues;
and to monitor controls designed to minimise these risks;
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o review SAIPA’s annual integrated report, including the separate
annual financial statements and any other public reports or
announcements containing financial information;			
						
o receive and deal with any complaints concerning the accounting
practices, internal and external audit or the content and audit of its
financial statements or related matters; and			
						
o annually review the committee’s work and charter to make
recommendations to the Board to ensure its effectiveness.		
								
Duties carried out 					
				
The Committee has performed its duties and responsibilities during the
financial year according to its charter.				
								

External Auditors

				
								

External audit
			
The Committee: 					
				
• nominated Nexia SAB&T as auditors and Aneel Darmalingam as
the external auditor and designated audit partner, respectively to
the members for appointment for the financial year ended
31 December 2015, and ensured that the appointments complied
with legal and regulatory requirements for the appointment of
an auditor;
• approved the external audit engagement letter, the audit plan and
the budgeted audit fees payable to the external auditors;		
					
• determined the nature and extent of all non-audit services
provided by the independent auditors and pre-approved all nonaudit services undertaken;					
• obtained assurances from the independent auditors that adequate
accounting records were being maintained;
• confirmed that no reportable irregularities had been identified or
reported by the independent auditors under the Auditing
Profession Act; and			
• The Committee is satisfied that SAB&T is independent of the
Institute after taking the following factors into account:
o
representations made by SAB&T to the Committee;		
						
o
the auditors do not, except as external auditors or in
		
rendering permitted non-audit services, receive any
		
remuneration or other benefit from SAIPA;			
					
o
the auditors’ independence was not impaired by any
		
consultancy, advisory or other work undertaken;
							
o
the auditors’ independence was not prejudiced as a result
		
of any previous appointment as auditors; and		
				
o
the criteria specified for independence by the Independent
		
Regulatory Board for Auditors and international
		
regulatory bodies.
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Annual Financial Statements

Internal Audit

The Committee has reviewed the annual financial statements of
SAIPA and is satisfied that they comply in all material respects with
International Financial Reporting Standards. 			
							

The Committee:		
		
• reviewed and approved the annual internal audit plans and
evaluated the independence, effectiveness and performance of
the internal audit function;			

The Committee:						
				
• confirmed, based on management’s review, that the interim and
annual financial statements were prepared on the going concern
basis;			

• considered the reports of the internal auditors on SAIPA’s
systems of internal control including financial controls, business
risk management and maintenance of effective internal control
systems;						

• examined the annual financial statements and other financial
information made public, prior to their approval by the Board;		
• considered accounting treatments, significant or unusual
transactions and accounting judgements;			
						
• considered the appropriateness of accounting policies and any
changes made;
• reviewed the representation letter relating to the annual financial
statements and the ISAE 3240 reasonable assurance opinion in
respect of the preliminary announcement, signed by 		
management;						
		
• considered any problems identified as well as any legal and tax
matters that could materially affect the financial statements; and
				
• met separately with management, external audit and internal
audit and satisfied themselves that no material control
weakness exists.						
		
Going concern						
				
Duties assigned by the Board					
						
The Committee fulfills an oversight role regarding SAIPA’s Annual
Report and the reporting process, including the systems of internal
financial controls. It is responsible for ensuring that SAIPA’s internal
audit function is independent and has the necessary resources,
standing and authority within the organisation to enable it to
effectively discharge its duties. Furthermore, the Committee oversees
co-operation between the internal and external auditors, and serves
as a link between the Board and these functions.			
			
During the year, the Committee met with the external auditor and
internal auditors without management being present. 			
						
The Committee is satisfied that it has complied in all material respects
with its legal, regulatory and other responsibilities.		
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• received assurances that proper accounting records were
maintained and that the systems safeguarded SAIPA’s assets
against unauthorised use or disposal;				
					
• reviewed issues raised by internal audit and the adequacy of
corrective action taken by management in response thereto;		
• assessed the adequacy of the performance of the internal audit
function and found it satisfactory; and
• concluded that there were no material breakdowns in
internal controls.						
						
Internal financial controls
Based on the results of the formal documented review of the design,
implementation and effectiveness of SAIPA’s system of internal
financial controls conducted by the internal audit function during
the financial year ended 31 December 2015 and, in addition,
considering information and explanations given by management
plus discussions held with the external auditor on the results of their
audit, the Committee is of the opinion that SAIPA’s system of internal
financial controls is effective and forms a basis for the preparation of
reliable financial statements. No findings have come to the attention
of the Committee to indicate that any material breakdown in internal
controls has occurred during the financial year under review.

Risk management 				
					
The Board has assigned oversight of SAIPA’s risk management function to
the Committee. The Committee fulfils an oversight role regarding financial
reporting risks, internal financial controls, fraud risk as it relates to financial
reporting and information technology risks as it relates to financial reporting.
			

The Committee:						
				
• reviewed SAIPA’s policies on risk management, including
information technology risks and found them to be sound;		
							
• reviewed, with the assistance of management, legal matters that
could have a material impact on SAIPA;			
						
• reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of SAIPA’s procedures
to ensure compliance with legal and regulatory responsibilities;
and		
				
• considered reports provided by management, internal assurance
providers and the independent auditors regarding compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements.
Combined assurance		
			
						
The Committee reviewed the plans and reports of the external and internal
auditors and other assurance providers including management and
concluded that these were adequate to address all significant financial risks
facing the business.						
			

Expertise and experience of the Finance
Executive and finance function 		
		
The Committee: 					
				
• considered the appropriateness of the experience and expertise of
SAIPA’s Finance Executive and concluded that this was appropriate;
and				
• considered the expertise, resources and experience of the finance
function and concluded that these were appropriate.		
								
The Committee has considered, and has satisfied itself of the overall
appropriateness of, the expertise and adequacy of resources of SAIPA’s
finance function and experience of the senior members of management
responsible for the financial function. 				
		

Audit Risk Committee members and
attendance at meetings

		
The Committee consists of two Board members and three independent,
non-Board members. The Chief Executive, Finance Executive, Chief
Operations Officer, internal auditors, external auditor and other assurance
providers attend meetings by invitation. During the year under review three
meetings were held. 						
				

Attendance:							
			
The names of the Committee members who were in office during the
period January 2015 to December 2015 and the details of the Committee
meetings attended by each of the members are:

Audit Risk Committee Composition
and Attendance of Audit Risk Committee
Meetings
Number of
Meetings Attended

Date of
Appointment/
Retirement

Mr Avhashoni Ramikosi

Three out of
Three meetings

11 June 2014

Mr Yaeesh Yasseen

One out of
Two meetings

10 June 2015

Ms Shirley Bahula-Ermias

Two out of three
meetings

11 June 2014

Mr Charl de Kock

Two out of three
meetings

11 June 2014

Ms Romeshni Govender

Two out of
Three meetings

11 June 2014

One out of
One meeting

Retired 10 June
2015

Name of Audit Risk
Committee Member

Mr Ram Naidoo

Recommendation of the annual financial
statements for approval by the Board		

							
Following the review by the committee of the annual financial statements of
SAIPA for the year ended 31 December 2015, the committee is of the view
that, in all material respects, it complies with the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act and IFRS and fairly presents the financial position at that date
and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended. The
committee has also satisfied itself as to the integrity of the remainder of the
annual report.							
			
Having achieved its objectives for the financial year, the committee
recommends the annual financial statements and annual integrated report for
the year ended 31 December 2015 for approval to the Board.			
									
A. Ramikosi							
			
Chairman of the Audit Risk Committee		
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OUR BUSINESS
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DEVELOPING THE

Accounting
Profession
What we do

As one of the largest professional accountancy organisations in
South Africa, SAIPA plays a key role in our economy and for this
reason we place a strong emphasis on our responsibility to our
members as well as to the wider community.
Accounting scandals date back to the middle of the
twentieth century, and the last decade or two have seen a
disproportionately large number of these scandals rock the
corporate world. As a result, we find ourselves at a place where
trust in business is one of the most often cited concerns and
simultaneously one of the most valued commodities. This
means that credibility is an absolute necessity for the modern
accountant, and is instrumental to the success of our members,
being accountants operating in this environment and, even
more importantly, to the business community at large that uses
the services of accountants and relies on them for accurate
reporting and business advice.
For this reason, we see our most important contributions to
the economy being not only developing our members and
the profession, but also providing certainty and credibility
to the wider business community through our professional
designations.
As can be seen in the accompanying illustration of our business
model, there are three primary areas in which our efforts are
directed in order to maximise our contribution.

1. Members
We are proud of our membership base, which includes full
members, associates and affiliates. It is only by working with our
members that we are able to make an impact on the economy
and positively influence the business community. To ensure that
this is sustainable into the future, SAIPA is committed to ensuring
that we provide opportunities and tools for development and
growth, and to ensuring that the credibility of our members is
maintained.
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membership
by gender
Female

Male
SAIPA

SOUTH AFRICA
SAIPA
54.1%
45.9%

Male
Female

SA
48.9%
51.1%

membership
demographics
SOUTH AFRICA
SAIPA 2015
SAIPA 2014

African
Coloured
Indian/Asian
White

SAIPA 2014
10.2%
4.5%
8.9%
76.4%

SAIPA 2015
12.9%
4.9%
8.2%
74.0%

SOUTH AFRICA
80.5%
8.8%
2.5%
8.2%
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Membership expectation

Professional recognition

Value proposition

Deliverable

Registration of qualification/designation with SAQA
and FASSET – NQF Level 8.

Maintain the registration of the qualification with the
appropriate authorities.

Provide support to facilitate the success of
candidates in the PE examination.

Promoting and marketing the qualifications and
institution to the market.

Facilitate the professionalisation of persons in the
accountancy profession.

Provide preparation course for the PE examination.
Developing career pathways toward obtain a
professional qualification such as RPL,
non-degree programmes and short courses.

Competency framework and academic
qualifications meets IES 2 - Initial Professional
Development.
Professional knowledge and
competence

Qualifications of academic institutions are
accredited.
Provide and facilitate opportunities to
promote the requirements of IES 7 –
Continuous Professional Development (CPD).

Technical support

Create and facilitate income
generating opportunities

Regularly review the competency framework in
compliance with the IES.
Accredited institutions and programmes using a robust
process.
Implement a CPD programme in compliance with IES
and develop the competence of the members to meet
changing needs.

Provide technical support through TSD in the areas
of financial reporting, taxation and legal regulations.

Respond to members queries, issue technical
newsletters and magazines (Accountant and
Tax Professional).

Strengthen international and national
stakeholder relationships.

Establishing reciprocal agreements with
international PAO and other stakeholders.

Create business opportunities through
developing relationships with organisations.

Lobbing with strategic stakeholders (government
departments) for the expansion of the functions that
can be performed by SAIPA members.

Provide compliance with regulation to serve the
public interest.

Ensure compliance of members with regulations and
codes of conduct.

Provide protection against litigation
Provide professional insurance as a benefit of
membership.

Employment opportunities

Reviewing the qualification/designation that enables Strengthen the qualification/designation’s
mobility between private and public sector.
recognition in commerce and industry as well as the
public sector.
Provide learnership opportunities for trainee in all
sectors.
Register learnerships in practice, commerce and
industry as well as the public sector.

2. The Profession
The accountancy profession consists of a number of key stakeholders, globally and within South Africa. SAIPA has an important role to play in
influencing and shaping the development of the profession in many ways, and we do so through representation in the relevant forums and regular
contact with decision makers.
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3. SAIPA
Our governance structures, systems and employees form the backbone of our organisation. These are constantly evolving, and by assessing these
on a regular basis and making changes where necessary, we are working to refine and improve our ability to deliver at a high level to all of our
stakeholders.

Creating Value
Some of the ways that SAIPA creates value for the profession and its members are as follows:

Capital

Value creation

Financial capital: the pool of funds that is available for use
in the provision of services obtained through financing or
generated through operations – fees received (generated
from operations) and grant funding.

The grant received from FASSET was used to facilitate the transformation goals of SAIPA
by providing educational training to improve the success rate of Black-African candidates
to become professionals and members of SAIPA – 104 successful candidates. Furthermore, SAIPA used internally generated income to fund candidates who were not eligible
for the FASSET programme – 14 from 16 candidates were successful.

Manufactured capital: manufactured physical objects
that are available for use in the provision of services –
infrastructure architecture.
Intellectual capital: organisational, knowledge-based
intangibles – patents and registration of designations.

SAIPA has approved the plans to invest in its infrastructure (IT resources and networks –
CRM and electronic logbook) to improve the quality of the services rendered its members.

Human capital: people’s competencies, capabilities and
experience and their motivations to innovate.

By ensuring a high level of standards are maintained, members remain relevant and are
suitably equipped for the environment they operate in, leading to the sustained reputation
of members, the Institute and the profession.

SAIPA renewed the registration of its existing qualifications (Professional Accountant and
Tax Practitioner) with both SAQA and FASSET, but is also pursuing the registration of the
qualification in the public sector – Public Finance.

Staff members are developed and supported in order to ensure their growth and success.
Volunteers (being primarily members) operate within regions, creating opportunities for
growth of the membership base and members who are involved.
Social and Relationships capital: institutions and
relationships established within and between stakeholders
and other networks – strategic stakeholders relationships
and reciprocal agreements.

SAIPA strengthened its relationship with key stakeholders in the profession through
assisting with the establishment of SARS RCB, BBBEE national body ABP as well as being
involved with treasury in the rationalisations and regulation of the profession.
SAIPA strengthened its relationship with international PAO through the signing of MoU and
Reciprocal Agreements which enhance opportunity for its members globally – notable is
the agreement with CPA Ireland which allows SAIPA to be the representative for the online
qualification of IPSAS.

Natural capital: renewable and non-renewable activities
that supports the vision of the organisation – carbon
footprint project .

SAIPA embarked on an environmental goal of reducing its contribution to carbon emission
by (i) replacing its generator with a “green” generator, (ii) reducing the use of paper and (iii)
introducing the use of electric-cigarettes amongst staff, and (iv) educating its staff about
contributing positively by becoming environmentally conscious.
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OUR

Stakeholders
We identify our stakeholders by assessing the key groups with which the Institute and its various committees interact. By pursuing and
building relationships that are beneficial to both the stakeholder and SAIPA, we are determined to create value for all involved and ensure the
sustainability thereof.

Stakeholder /
key interest

Why we engage (relationship foundations)

Member forums and CPD training
forums;
Newsletters and publications;
Our website;
Member surveys.

Trainee competency;
Assessment of trainees;
Trainee logbook.

Planned ATC visits;
Quality assessments.

Trainees are our future members and supporting
them through the qualification process is critical to
their development.

Mentorship and training;
Career opportunities;
Practice management information.

We look to attract learners at school and students
in universities to the accounting profession as well
as to encourage them to pursue a future as a
SAIPA member.

Growth and development;
Career opportunities;
Potential remuneration.

CPD training forums;
Newsletters and publications;
Our website;
ATCs.
SAIPA’s annual National
Accounting Olympiad;
University visits and presence;
Publications.

Accredited universities provide the basis of our
theoretical programme and are critical to
maintaining our standards.

Competency framework;
Accreditation requirements.

Visits and meetings.

Our employees are the face of SAIPA and it is
through them that other stakeholder relationships
are formed and maintained.

Remuneration;
Training and development.

Day-to-day interaction;
Regular staff meetings;
Education sessions;
Employee surveys

All of our products and services should be able
to effectively assist members in maintaining their
professionalism and contribute to their success.

ATCs service the wider public and also provide a
training ground for our trainees where key
Accredited Training
knowledge and skills are transferred and the
Centres (“ATCs”)
Professional Accountants (SA) of the future
are developed.
Trainees

Students and
learners

Universities

Employees

How we connect

Service levels;
Technical assistance and information;
Product information;
Value of the designations;
Practice management information.

Our members are integral to every aspect of our
business. Whatever we do, we need to take into
account their needs.
Members

What matters to the stakeholder
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Stakeholder /
key interest
Potential
employees

Suppliers

Professional
accountancy
bodies

Government

Regulators

Why we engage (relationship foundations)

What matters to the stakeholder

How we connect

In order to be an employer of choice and attract
talented individuals, we need to ensure that
potential employees view SAIPA in a
desirable light.
Delivery of key resources integral to the successful
functioning of SAIPA.

Growth and development;
Career opportunities;
Potential remuneration.

Media;
Website;
Publications.

Building strong relationships;
Fair reward.

Day-to-day interactions;
Ad hoc meetings and
communication.

Shaping the development of the profession and
contributing to its growth and transformation.

Compliance with standards and
requirements;
Representation of members and the
profession;
Providing input on key issues
experienced by the profession.

Submissions on key issues;
Representation on boards and
committees of the various bodies;
Meetings and visits.

Playing a role in the development of
South Africa and its economy.

Maintaining standards of the
profession;
Strong ethics;
Development of skills in the public sector.

Ad hoc meetings and
communication.

Maintaining SAIPA’s accreditations and
credibility through compliance with
standards and regulations.

Compliance with standards and regulations. Committee structures;
Telephonic and written
communications;
Face-to-face meetings.

Maximise the respect and reverence for the
accounting profession and Professional
The media and the
Accountants (SA).
wider community

Credibility of SAIPA members and
designations;
Transformation within SAIPA and the
profession.

Website;
Press releases;
Publications;
Articles;
Interviews.
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INVESTIGATIONS

and
Disciplinary
Committee
Since the inception of the new Legal, Ethics and Compliance
(LEC) department in 2015, we have successfully held quarterly
IC meetings and established an offences register for re-occurring
transgressions. This ensures consistency and provides the
secretariat with information in respect of required articles, CPD
and general awareness for the Professional Accountant (SA).

The Investigations Committee (IC) is responsible for sifting through
complaints made by the public, against our members and, with
the assistance of the LEC, conducts investigations relating to
alleged acts in breach of the SAIPA code of conduct and by-laws.
There has been a trend in the type of complaints received
over the last year. Queries relating to the failure to release
SARS e-profiles and members using the incorrect designations
dominated our IC. Articles were noted in the Professional
Accountant in respect of these matters to create an awareness of
the possible pitfalls.
A recommendation was made by the IC, in which Ethics
would form part of the compulsory Continuous Professional
Development (CPD) hours. This was accepted by the Social and
Ethics Committee together with the Education Committee agreed
and confirmed in November 2015 as a compulsory component
of the Continuous Professional Development (CPD) for all
Professional Accountants (SA). This would ensure that steps are
being taken in line with the drive towards an ethically compliant
Institute and, as an added benefit, an awareness of ethics has the
potential to reduce disciplinary matters.
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Investigations Committee Statistics
Western Region

Eastern
Region

Central Region

Northern Region Southern Region

2015 Investigations Committee results

Offences
Unprofessional and
unethical conduct

2

0

1

4

0

Strike-off

0

0

0

3

0

Bringing the Institute into
disrepute

1

0

1

0

0

Failure to release
e-profile

0

2

1

2

0

Incorrect Membership
C&I member

0

0

0

2

0

Fine for Touting

2

0

0

0

0

Failure to respond to the
Legal Secretariat

0

0

0

4

0

Eastern
Region

Central Region

Disciplinary Committee Statistics
Western Region

Northern Region Southern Region

2015 Disciplinary Committee results

Offences
Unprofessional and
unethical conduct

0

0

0

3

0

Strike-off

0

0

0

1

0

Bringing the Institute into
disrepute

0

0

0

2

0

The efficiency of the IC cannot be understated. Their thorough investigations and ability to handle complaints, have minimised matters being referred
to the Disciplinary Committee (DC). We look forward to the revised code of conduct and ensuring that all SAIPA members remain professional and
competent in the work that they perform, exercise due care and diligence in their interactions with their employers and clients, uphold the highest
integrity and ethical morals in advising their clients and at all times conduct themselves in a manner that protects the public interest.
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Quality
Quality at the South African Institute of Professional Accountants
(SAIPA) is centred on our membership to the International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC). IFAC requires all member
Institutes to comply with stringent Statement of Member
Obligations (SMO) to maintain the accreditation. 2015 marked
a decade of SAIPA’s membership to IFAC and this year we will
have our two-yearly monitoring visit to confirm that we have
successfully maintained our member obligations.
SAIPA has several additional certifications and associations. These
include Proudly South African, SAQA and FASSET accreditation,
Ethics SA, Anti-Intimidation and Corruption Forum, Professional
Association of Network Research and its NPO status.
SAIPA has implemented the international quality standard ISO
9001:2008 to ensure the success and sustainability of the
Institute. We have a re-certification audit planned this year. The
quality standard requires that all documents, processes and
policies within SAIPA are quality controlled and that regular
internal audits are performed to assist with risk mitigation.
In an effort to comply with IFAC standards, we have initiated our
first proactive means on monitoring our members. A Membership
Compliance Officer was employed in 2015, and her role is to
ensure that SAIPA members fulfil their good standing obligations
to the Institute and in so doing preserve our IFAC membership
and SAIPA’s image as the professional accountant of choice.
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RISK
Management

45 I Risk Management

SAIPA has a Risk Management Committee charged with monitoring
and evaluating risk and reporting accordingly to the Audit
Risk Committee.
The following describes the key elements of the risk management
process, namely risk planning, identification, analysis, response, and
monitoring. Risk planning and risk identification for both internal
and external risks are conducted at management level. We primarily
utilise a risk register which includes risk mitigation strategies for
identified risks. Risk identification takes place at various levels of
SAIPA to ensure that common risk trends are identified and risk
management can successfully be enabled.
To determine which risks pose the highest threat to the viability
of SAIPA, we classify them on a scale based on the likelihood
that a risk will occur within the assessment horizon as well as the
impact the risk would have on SAIPA’s business objectives if it
were realised. The scale varies from 1, where the likelihood of
occurrence is remote, to 10, where the likelihood is certain.
We define a remote risk as one that will occur only under
exceptional circumstances and a near certain risk as one that can
be expected to occur within the specified time horizon, being our
identified strategic planning period.
We also evaluate the impact level on a scale ranging from
insignificant, where the impact of an adverse event is minimal, to
critical, where major financial, operational or reputational loss
can occur.
Based on the likelihood that a risk will occur as well as the impact
the risk would have on SAIPA’s reputation, business, financial
position, profit and cash flow leads us to classify the risks as “high,”
“medium” or “low.”
Management is responsible for continuously monitoring the risks
and the effectiveness of mitigation strategies.
All identified and relevant risks are evaluated at the Risk
Management Committee in accordance with our risk management
policy, and thereafter reported to the Audit Risk Committee as
required. The Board is informed quarterly about individual risks
based on clearly defined reporting criteria.
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THE 21st CENTURY

Professional
Accountant
Paradigm Shift from NumberCruncher to Value-Adding
Professional Accountant
Rashied Small, Lucinda Smidt and Jade Jansen

Introduction
Professional Accountancy Organisations observe that
today’s Professional Accountant differs dramatically from the
Professional Accountant of the past. The new Professional
Accountant needs a value-added focus from the time of entry
into the profession until retirement. Technical knowledge
and competency in accounting is no longer sufficient, as the
new Professional Accountants are expected to provide input
in finance, marketing, management, strategy, planning, risk
management and information technology. To do so, they must
possess the communication, critical thinking, broad business
management and leadership skills necessary to be an integral
part of the organisation’s decision-making team (Accounting
Education Change Commission. 1990; Siegel and Sorensen,
1994; Basser. 1998; Carlozzi, 1998; Dyer, 1999).

Changing the Competence Sets of
Professional Accountants
In the past, the Professional Accountant was viewed as a
recorder of business transactions and the compiler of financials
– often referred to as a “Tax Accountant”. With advances
in technologies and accounting software packages, the
Professional Accountant’s technical knowledge of accounting
(especially the accounting standards) was considered more
than sufficient to perform their functions with a high degree of
confidence and expertise. The criticism often levelled at the
“old-styled” Professional Accountant is that the only shift in the
services rendered, namely maintenance of accounting records
and preparation of financial statements, was the increasing
reliance and use of technology and software packages.
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In order to fulfil the role and functions as a value-adding Professional
Accountant, the competencies required expand beyond the technical
knowledge competence in accounting. The following have been
identified as the core competencies of the 21st century Professional
Accountant:
• Functional competencies: These focus on specific capabilities
used by the Professional Accountant to participate in decisionmaking processes, perform risk analysis and research, which are
critical to sustain any business, support its value-creating activities
and utilise its resources effectively;

• Personal competencies: These focus on interpersonal skills such
as communication, professionalism, problem-solving and
leadership, which are critical when operating in a multidimensional decision-making team; and
• Broad business perspective competencies: These focus on the
ability of the Professional Accountant to adapt to the changing
business environment, which includes skills such as strategic and
critical thinking, resource management and an understanding of
the dynamics of the industry, sector and global environments.

The following are considered as core competencies for the 21st century
Professional Accountant:
Competency

Details

Technology

It is important that the relevant technologies are leveraged and exploited to enhance the quality of service delivery.
Modern technology should be used to communicate and interact with clients.

Life-long learning

It is important to keep pace with the ever-changing environment governing the profession and the industries in which
accounting-related services are offered. The focus should be on developing technical knowledge, business management
competence and soft skills.

Professional conduct

Professional Accountants must uphold the integrity of the profession and maintain high standards in
ever-changing environments and business cultures, with the objective of ensuring continued recognition as a
trusted advisor.

Business advisor

In addition to the core functions/services, the Professional Accountant needs to be promoted as a trusted business
advisor/partner who develops solutions to complex problems by integrating knowledge, expertise and resources from
different disciplines.

Market conditions

Professional Accountants must continually address changes in the profession, economy, businesses and regulations in
order to respond to shifts in business, society and technology.

Value proposition

Professional Accountants must demonstrate the core values of the profession through the manner in which they conduct
their business and render services.

Conclusion
Professional Accountants must accept that change is inevitable
and should embrace the fact that technology has changed the
way traditional accounting services are rendered. This means that
Professional Accountants must be forward-thinking and develop the
competencies to work in a multidisciplinary decision-making team.
In summary, the core competencies of the new Professional
Accountant are a unique combination of interpersonal and
human skills, technical business and accounting knowledge, and
technology that allows the new Professional Accountant to provide
value-added services to businesses and clients. The following are
the core competencies of the 21st century Professional Accountant
(Journal of Accountancy Issue December 2011):
1. Technical knowledge in accounting and broader business
management – complying with the regulations governing the
services offered as a Professional Accountant;

2. Critical thinking and problem-solving skills – being skilful
in evaluating facts, situations and information and applying
professional judgement to develop appropriate solutions;
3. Interpersonal and effective communication skills – conveying
and presenting reliable and meaningful information in an
effective way;
4. Change management skills – identifying strategic directions
and opportunities to meet the changing needs of businesses
and clients;
5. Integration and collaboration skills – building strategic
partnerships and working collaboratively to develop
multidisciplinary solutions to complex problems;
6. Business analysis skills – using business skills to connect data
and performance analysis in order to provide guidance to
business decision-makers; and
7. Leadership skills – influencing, inspiring and motivating others
to facilitate change, achieve goals and sustainability.
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PERFORMANCE

Summary
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Revenue and Membership
Growth
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MEMBERS

R MILLIONS

Revenue*

2015

* Restated to include Professional Indemnity insurance fees
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NATIONAL
ACCOUNTING

Olympiad

For several years, it has been widely recognised that there is a
shortage of qualified accountants in the country. In the rapidly
changing world of work, school-leavers have a range of careers to
consider and SAIPA is actively promoting professional accountancy
as a career path.
Since 2002, SAIPA has run the annual National Accounting
Olympiad (NAO) for Grade 12 learners. The NAO brings together
schools, teachers and their learners in a challenging Olympiad, to
identify the sharpest minds in South Africa.
To support learners, SAIPA provides complementary accountancy
study guides, career guidance and online resources.
Learners that successfully complete round one of the examination
proceed to round two. The process is subject to stringent quality
control checks, in respect of the examination and marking process.
The National Accounting Olympiad (NAO) continues to grow and
we are pleased with the performance in 2015. The total number of
entries significantly increased from 2 819 to 3 334. These learners
represented 353 different schools throughout South Africa.
The NAO Gala Evening was well attended by SAIPA Board,
secretariat, learners and business leaders.
We are optimistic about growing the reach and impact of NAO
amongst schools and learners. In doing so, we are nurturing and
developing the next generation of Professional Accountants.
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South AfricAn inStitute of ProfeSSionAl AccountAntS
(Registration number 069 956 NPO)

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2015

Board Members’ responsibilities
and approval
The Board is required to maintain adequate accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and
related financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of
the Institute as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and are based upon appropriate accounting
policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.
The Board acknowledges that it is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the Institute and places considerable
importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the Board to meet these responsibilities, the Board sets standards for internal control
aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined
framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored
throughout the Institute and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the Institute’s business is conducted in a manner
that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the Institute is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring
all known forms of risk across the Institute. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Board endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The Board is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal control provides reasonable
assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control
can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The Board has reviewed the Institute’s cash flow forecast and, in light of this review and the current financial position, it is satisfied that the Institute has or
had access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the Institute’s annual financial statements. The annual financial statements
have been examined by the company’s external auditors and their report is presented on page 56.
The annual financial statements set out on pages 57 to 84, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the Board on
24 March 2016 and were signed on their behalf by:

C S Dibete
Chairman

F Ngwenya
Acting Chief Executive
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independent Auditors’ report
TO THE MEMBERS OF SOUTH AFRICAN INSTITUTE OF PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS
We have audited the annual financial statements of South African Institute of Professional Accountants, as set out on pages 59 to 82, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

BOARD’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Institute’s Board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, and requirements of the Institute’s Constitution, and for such internal control as the Board determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of annual financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these annual financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the annual financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the annual financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the annual financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
annual financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the annual financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION
In our opinion, the annual financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of South African Institute of Professional
Accountants as at 31 December 2015, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, and the requirements of the Institute’s Constitution.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the fact that supplementary information set out on pages 83 to 84 does not form part of the annual
financial statements and is presented as additional information. We have not audited this information and accordingly do not express an opinion thereon.

OTHER REPORTS
As part of our audit of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015, we have read the Board Members’ Report for the purpose
of identifying whether there are material inconsistencies between this report and the audited annual financial statements. This report is the responsibility of
the respective preparers. Based on reading this report we have not identified material inconsistencies between this report and the audited annual financial
statements. However, we have not audited this report and accordingly do not express an opinion thereon.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REqUIREMENTS
In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 04 December 2015, we report that Nexia SAB&T has been the auditor
of South African Institute of Professional Accountants for 3 years.

Nexia SAB&T
Registered Auditors
Per: A Darmalingam
Date: 24 March 2016
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Board Members’ report
The Board has pleasure in submitting their report for the year ended 31 December 2015.

1. Review of financial results and activities
The Institute is a qualification and membership body for professional individuals engaged in accountancy and related services.
The financial position, operating results and cash flows of the Institute are set out in the attached annual financial statements
and do not in our opinion require any further comment.

2. Going concern
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities,
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

3. Events after the reporting period
The Board is not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year that has a material impact on
the annual financial statements.

4. Directorate
The board members of the Institute in office at the date of this report are as follows:
Directors
Designation		Changes
C S Dibete
Chairman			
M O Seedat
Deputy Chairman			
F Ngwenya
Acting Chief Executive		 Appointed 19 August 2015
S Abass			 Appointed 10 June 2015
S Daniels
Chief Executive		 Resigned 31 August 2015
P T Kubheka							
K Naicker			 Appointed 10 June 2015
R Naidoo			 Retired 10 June 2015
N Ntsinde							
S Olsen			 Retired 10 June 2015
A Parker							
P Pieterse			 Appointed 10 June 2015
H Pretorius			 Retired 10 June 2015
A Ramikosi							
H Salie			 Retired 10 June 2015
V Sangoni							
B Tamba							
Y Yasseen			 Appointed 10 June 2015
R Ludwig
Observer			
In terms of the Institute’s Constitution, Board members retire after serving four years in office. During the current year, four Board members retired in
accordance with this provision and were appropriately replaced.
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5. Board secretary
The Institute’s Board secretary is Mr. M Nkumanda.

6. Committees
Committee name

Abbreviation used in this document

Board Committees
Appeals Committee

AC

Audit and Risk Committee

ARC

Disciplinary Committee

DC

Executive Committee

EXCO

Human Resources and Remuneration
Committee

HRC

Investigations Committee

IC

Nominations Committee

NOMCOM

Social and Ethics Committee

SEC

Secretariat Committees
Education Committee

EDCOM

Regional Associations and District Associations

RADAC

Committee
Risk Management Committee

RMC

Technical Committee

TECHCOM
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Statement of financial position as at
31 December 2015
Note(s)

2015
R

2014
R

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment

3

8,686,815

8,245,930

Intangible assets

4

427,324

415,977

Other financial assets

5

220,426

254,870

9,334,565

8,916,777

Current Assets
Accounts receivable

7

1,996,823

3,701,398

Cash and cash equivalents

8

33,509,032

23,427,063

35,505,855

27,128,461

44,840,420

36,045,238

Designated funds and reserves

10,694,672

7,984,940

Accumulated funds

13,661,147

6,229,303

24,355,819

14,214,243

13

597,874

312,804

Finance lease obligation

13

402,746

250,391

Accounts payable

14

19,483,981

21,267,800

19,886,727

21,518,191

Total Liabilities

20,484,601

21,830,995

Total Equity and Liabilities

44,840,420

36,045,238

Total Assets

Equity and Liabilities
Equity

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation
Current Liabilities
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Statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income
Note(s)

2015
R

2014
Restated
R

Revenue

16

48,073,438

43,473,676

Other income

17

11,998,754

8,814,130

(52,150,351)

(52,554,728)

Operating expenses
Operating surplus/(deficit)

18

7,921,841

(266,922)

Investment revenue

19

2,332,256

960,886

Finance costs

20

(78,077)

(69,295)

10,176,020

624,669

Gains on fair value adjustment of available-for-sale investments

(34,444)

61,024

Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year

(34,444)

61,024

10,141,576

685,693

Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive (loss)/income:

Total comprehensive income for the year
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Statement of changes
in equity
Balance at 01 January 2014

Building
Reserve

Bursary
Fund

R

R

Available
for sale
Investment
Fair Value
Reserve
R

Development Total
Fund
Designated
Funds and
Reserves

Accumulated
Funds

Total
Equity

R

R

R

R

240,000

450,000

163,137

6,306,242

7,159,379

6,369,171

13,528,550

Surplus for the year

-

-

-

-

-

624,669

624,669

Other comprehensive income

-

-

61,024

-

61,024

-

61,024

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

-

61,024

-

61,024

624,669

685,693

Transfer between reserves

240,000

(20,000)

-

544,537

764,537

(764,537)

-

Total transfers

240,000

(20,000)

-

544,537

764,537

(764,537)

-

Balance at 01 January 2015

480,000

430,000

224,161

6,850,779

7,984,940

6,229,303

14,214,243

Surplus for the year

-

-

-

-

-

10,176,020

10,176,020

Other comprehensive loss

-

-

(34,444)

-

(34,444)

-

(34,444)

Total comprehensive for the year

-

-

(34,444)

-

(34,444)

10,176,020

10,141,576

Transfer between reserves

240,000

(663)

-

2,504,839

2,744,176

(2,744,176)

-

Total transfers

240,000

(663)

-

2,504,839

2,744,176

(2,744,176)

-

Balance at 31 December 2015

720,000

429,337

189,717

9,355,618

10,694,672

13,661,147

24,355,819

9

10

Note(s)
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Statement of cash flows
Note(s)

2015
R

2014
Restated
R

58,344,581

50,054,269

(49,812,094)

(45,501,826)

8,532,487

4,552,443

2,332,256

960,886

10,864,743

5,513,329

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from members
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash generated from operations

23

Interest income
Net cash from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

3

(326,200)

(178,185)

Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment

3

32,956

2,080

Purchase of other intangible assets

4

(178,100)

(410,026)

(471,344)

(586,131)

Finance lease payments

(311,430)

(390,624)

Net cash in financing activities

(311,430)

(390,624)

Total cash movement for the year

10,081,969

4,536,574

Cash at the beginning of the year

23,427,063

18,890,489

33,509,032

23,427,063

Net cash in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Total cash at end of the year

8
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Accounting policies
1.

Presentation of annual financial statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. The annual financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the Statement of Cash Flows which has been presented on a cash basis and Available for Sale investments
which has been prepared on a fair value basis, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in South African Rands.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts represented in the annual
financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual
results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include:
Accounts receivable and cash and cash equivalents
The Institute assesses its accounts receivable and cash and cash equivalents for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether
an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the Institute makes judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.
Available-for-sale financial assets
The Institute follows the guidance of IAS 39 to determine when an available for sale financial asset is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgment. In making this judgment, the Institute evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its
cost.
Fair value estimation
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and available for sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Institute is the current bid price.
The carrying value less impairment provision of accounts receivable and accounts payable are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the
Institute for similar financial instruments.
Impairment testing
The Institute reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there
are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows
used to determine the value in use of tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time.
Residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on management estimates.

1.2 Property, plant and equipment
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
•
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Institute; and
•
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.
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Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value.
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item

Average useful life

Land

Indefinite

Buildings

50 years

Furniture and fixtures

10 - 12 years

Motor vehicles

5 years

Office equipment

5 years

IT equipment

3 years

Finance lease assets - office equipment

Lease term

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised. The
gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any,
and the carrying amount of the item.

1.3 Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised when:
• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and
• the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which
the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their
useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every period end.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a
result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its useful life.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:
Item
Computer software
Website

Useful life
2 years
2 years
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Accounting policies continued
1.4

Financial instruments

Classification
The Institute classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories:
•
Loans and receivables
•
Available-for-sale financial assets
•
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes place at initial recognition. Classification is re
assessed on an annual basis.
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the Institute becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
The Institute classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value.
For financial instruments which are not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the instrument.
Subsequent measurement
Accounts receivable and cash and cash equivalents are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated
impairment losses.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity until the asset is disposed of or determined to be impaired. Interest on available-for-sale financial assets
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in surplus or deficit as part of other income. Dividends received on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in surplus or deficit as part of other income when the Institute’s right to receive payment is established.
Accounts payable and finance lease obligations at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Institute has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date the Institute assesses all financial assets to determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets has been impaired.
For amounts due to the Institute, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy and default of payments are
all considered indicators of impairment.
Impairment losses and reversals of impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit.
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Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the financial asset at the date that the impairment is reversed shall not
exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
Financial instruments designated as available for sale
Available-for-sale financial assets, comprising principally of marketable equity securities, are non derivatives that are either designated as available-for-sale
or that are not classified in any of the other investment categories. Available-for-sale financial assets are included in non-current assets unless the Institute
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable are measured at initial recognition at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in surplus or deficit when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the deficit is recognised in surplus or deficit within
operating expenses. When a debtor is uncollectable, it is written off against the provision for doubtful debts. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against operating expenses in surplus or deficit.
Accounts payable
Accounts payable are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently at
amortised cost.
Finance lease obligations
Finance lease obligations consist of amounts owing to third-party lenders in relation to the financing of assets purchased. These obligations are intiially
recorded at fair value and subsequently at the amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

1.5

Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease
if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
Finance leases – lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or,
if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease.
The lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate on the remaining balance of the liability.
Operating leases – lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term. The difference between the amounts recognised as
an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset. This liability is not discounted.
Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.
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Accounting policies continued
1.6

Impairment of assets

The Institute assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
Institute estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction
is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
The Institute assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for assets may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.
The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.

1.7

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation leave and sick leave,
bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their entitlement or, in the case
of non accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.
Defined contribution plans
Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plan in respect of services in a particular period are charged as an expense in that period.

1.8

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:
•
the Institute has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
•
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
•
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.
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Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement shall be recognised
when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a
separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 25.

1.9

Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Institute and the revenue can be reliably measured. When
the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of the expenses
recognised that are recoverable.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts receivable for goods and services provided
in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts and volume rebates and Value Added Tax.
Approved training centres
Approved training centre fee revenue arises from the invoicing for accreditation as well as annual fees. Revenue is recognised in the year to which the
fee relates.
Entrance and administration fees
Entrance and administration fees arise during and upon completion of the application process. The fees are invoiced and the revenue is recognised at the
appropriate time during the processing of the application.
Membership fees and other annual fees
Membership fee revenue arises from the annual billing of members for annual membership. Revenue is recognised in the year to which the annual
membership fee relates. Membership fees received prior to the year to which they relate are recorded as income received in advance and recognised in
the year that the membership fee relates to.
Professional evaluation fees
Professional evaluation fees arise during the professional evaluation application process. The fees are invoiced and the revenue is recognised at the
appropriate time during the processing of the application.
Technical and other income
Revenue from technical and other income is recognised when the Institute has invoiced the buyer and has provided the applicable services or transferred
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the buyer.
Investment income
Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method. Dividends are recognised, in surplus or deficit, when the Institute’s right
to receive payment has been established.

1.10

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs don’t qualify to be capitalised, therefore, all borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

1.11

Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows is prepared using the Direct Method.
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Notes to the annual
financial statements
2.

New Standards and Interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year
In the current year, the Institute has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financial year and that are relevant to
its operations. The impact of adoption of these standards is considered immaterial.
Standard/ Interpretation:			
				

Effective date:
Years beginning on or after

• Amendment to IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment: 			
Annual improvements project
• Amendment to IAS 24: Related Party Disclosures: 			
Annual improvements project
• Amendment to IAS 38: Intangible Assets: 			
Annual improvements project
• Amendment to IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement: 			
Annual improvements project

01 July 2014
01 July 2014
01 July 2014
01 July 2014

2.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective
The Institute has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are
mandatory for the Institute’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2016 or later periods.
The impact of each of these changes is currently being investigated by management and will be applied from the effective date.
Standard/ Interpretation:			
					

Effective date:
Years beginning on or after

• IFRS 5 - Non current assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations: 			
		
Annual improvements 2012 2014
• IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures: 			
		
Annual improvements 2012 2014
• IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments			
• IFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts from Customers			
• IFRS 16 - Leases			
• IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements			
• IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment			
• IAS 19 - Employee Benefits			
• IAS 38 - Intangible Assets			

01 January 2016
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01 January 2016
01 January 2018
01 January 2018
01 January 2019
01 January 2016
01 January 2016
01 January 2016
01 January 2016

3. Property, plant and equipment
2015

Land
Buildings

2014

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

775,000

-

775,000

775,000

-

775,000

7,078,666

(808,583)

6,270,083

7,078,666

(808,583)

6,270,083

Furniture and fixtures

587,895

(325,150)

262,745

583,842

(267,183)

316,659

Motor vehicles

131,491

(126,012)

5,479

131,491

(124,917)

6,574

Office equipment

631,013

(266,658)

364,355

887,537

(734,132)

153,405

IT equipment

891,955

(720,655)

171,300

973,333

(742,416)

230,917

837,853

1,183,900

(690,608)

493,292

8,686,815 11,613,769

(3,367,839)

8,245,930

Finance lease assets - office equipment
Total

1,854,678

(1,016,825)

11,950,698

(3,263,883)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2015
						
Opening balance
Land

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

775,000

-

-

-

775,000

6,270,083

-

-

-

6,270,083

316,659

4,053

-

(57,969)

262,745

6,574

-

-

(1,095)

5,479

Office equipment

153,405

269,221

(7,602)

(50,667)

364,355

IT equipment

230,917

52,926

(3,129)

(109,414)

171,300

Finance lease assets - office equipment

493,292

670,778

-

(326,217)

837,853

8,245,930

996,978

(10,731)

(545,362)

8,686,815

Opening balance

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

775,000

-

-

-

775,000

6,262,683

7,400

-

-

6,270,083

358,988

14,903

-

(57,232)

316,659

Buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

Total

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2014

Land
Buildings
Furniture and fixtures

32,873

-

-

(26,299)

6,574

Office equipment

Motor vehicles

317,654

24,632

-

(188,881)

153,405

IT equipment

303,565

131,250

(12,658)

(191,240)

230,917

Finance lease assets - office equipment

710,340

-

-

(217,048)

493,292

8,761,103

178,185

(12,658)

(680,700)

8,245,930

Total

Property, plant and equipment encumbered as security
The following assets have been encumbered as security for the secured long term borrowings (refer to note 13):
			
Office equipment
837,853
493,292
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Details of properties
Erf 1339, Vorna Valley Extension 21, Gauteng
2015
R

2014
R

7,775,000

7,775,000

86,066

78,666

Buildings accumulated depreciation

(808,583)

(808,583)

Total

7,052,483

7,045,083

Purchase price: January 2007
Additions and capitalised expenditure

An independent valuation of the property as at 22 October 2014 valued the property at R7,800,000.

4.

Intangible asseTS
2015

Computer software
Website
Total

2014

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
amortisation

Carrying
value

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
amortisation

Carrying
value

1,116,268

(688,944)

427,324

938,168

(522,191)

415,977

80,689

(80,689)

-

80,689

(80,689)

-

1,196,957

(769,633)

427,324

1,018,857

(602,880)

415,977

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2015
Opening balance

Additions

Amortisation

Total

415,977

178,100

(166,753)

427,324

Opening balance

Additions

Amortisation

Total

205,572

410,026

(199,621)

415,977

13,502

-

(13,502)

-

219,074

410,026

(213,123)

415,977

Computer software
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2014

Computer software
Website
Total

71 I Notes to the annual financial statements

5.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-for-sale
Listed shares at market value

2015
R

2014
R

220,426

254,870

3,641 shares held in Sanlam Ltd at a fair value of R60.54 per share (2014: R70.00)
Non-current assets
Available-for-sale

2015
R

2014
R

220,426

254,870

Fair value information
Fair values are determined annually at Statement of Financial Position date. Investments in listed shares are categorised as Level 1 within the fair value
hierarchy, with value being determined in relation to a quoted market price.
The Institute has not reclassified any financial assets from cost or amortised cost to fair value or from fair value to cost or amortised cost during the current
or prior years.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of the debt securities classified as available for sale.
Reconciliation of available-for-sale financial assets
Opening balance

254,870

193,847

Unrealised losses/gains disclosed in Other
Comprehensive Income

(34,444)

61,023

Total

220,426

254,870

6.

Financial assets by category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:
2015

Other financial assets
Accounts receivable

2014

Loans and
receivables

Available-forsale

Total

Loans and
receivables

Available-forsale

Total

-

220,426

220,426

-

254,870

254,870

1,528,574

-

1,528,574

3,463,836

-

3,463,836

Cash and cash equivalents

33,509,032

- 33,509,032

23,427,063

-

23,427,063

Total

35,037,606

220,426 35,258,032

26,890,899

254,870

27,145,769
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7.

Accounts receivable
2015
R

2014
R

2,424,226

4,217,631

(1,046,541)

(883,122)

16,135

16,135

Prepayments

467,438

237,562

Other receivables

135,565

113,192

1,996,823

3,701,398

Debtors
Provision for impairment of debtors
Deposits

Total

Accounts receivable pledged as security
Accounts receivable have not been pledged as security for any other financial obligation.
Credit quality of accounts receivable
The credit quality of debtors that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to historical repayment trends of individual debtors. Credit
terms are offered only to members registered on the Institute’s database with valid details. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair
value of each class of receivable mentioned above.
Fair value of accounts receivable
The carrying value of accounts receivable approximates fair value as the provision for impairment of debtors takes into account long outstanding
amounts owed by members for whom the recoverability is unlikely. In determining the recoverability of debtors, the Institute considers the ageing
of the receivable, the debtor’s membership status and historical payment trends. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the large
membership base.
Accounts receivable past due but not impaired
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

3 months past due

2015
R

2014
R

775,358

3,055,353

Accounts receivable impaired
As of 31 December 2015, debtors of R1,046,541 (2014: R 883,122) were impaired and provided for.
Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

Opening balance
Provision for impairment
Amounts written off as uncollectable
Total
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2015
R

2014
R

(883,122)

(1,127,496)

(1,059,095)

(1,721,859)

895,676

1,966,233

(1,046,541)

(883,122)

8.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Bank balances
Short-term deposits
Cash on hand
Total
Cession of short-term deposits for overdraft facility

2015
R

2014
R

4,582,861

8,041,034

28,917,281

15,380,112

8,890

5,917

33,509,032

23,427,063

500,000

500,000

Credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand
The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by
reference to historical information about counterparty default rates. None of the financial institutions with which bank balances are held defaulted in
prior periods and as a result a credit rating of high is ascribed to the financial institutions. The Institute’s maximum exposure to credit risk as a result
of the bank balances held is limited to the carrying value of these balances as detailed above.
Fair value of cash and cash equivalents
There are no differences between the fair value of the cash and cash equivalents and their carrying amount.

9.

Building Reserve
2015
R

2014
R

Balance at beginning of the year

480,000

240,000

Transfer from Accumulated Funds

240,000

240,000

Total

720,000

480,000

10. Bursary Fund
The Bursary Fund was established to provide for bursaries to be distributed from reserves.
2015
R

2014
R

Balance at beginning of the year

430,000

450,000

Transfer from Accumulated Funds

50,000

50,000

Transfer to Accumulated Funds for bursaries awarded

(50,663)

(70,000)

Total

429,337

430,000

11. Available-for-sale Investment Fair Value Reserve	

Available-for-sale financial instruments

2015
R

2014
R

189,717

224,161
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12. Development Fund
2015
R

2014
R

6,850,779

6,306,242

371,826

388,369

25% of net surplus

2,544,005

156,168

Transfer to Accumulated Funds for approved projects

(410,992)

-

Total

9,355,618

6,850,779

2015
R

2014
R

within one year

472,165

295,165

in second to fifth year inclusive

683,102

331,169

1,155,267

626,334

less: future finance charges

(154,647)

(63,139)

Present value of minimum lease payments

1,000,620

563,195

2015
R

2014
R

within one year

402,746

250,391

in second to fifth year inclusive

597,874

312,804

1,000,620

563,195

Non-current liabilities

597,874

312,804

Current liabilities

402,746

250,391

1,000,620

563,195

Balance at beginning of the year
50% of entrance fees received

13. Finance lease LIABILITIES
Minimum lease payments due

Present value of minimum lease
payments due

Total

Total
The Institute leases certain office equipment under finance leases.

The average lease term is five years and the average effective borrowing rate was 9.5% (2013: 9%).
All leases have fixed repayments and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rent.
The Institute’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets. Refer note 3.
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14. Accounts payable

Creditors
Income received in advance
VAT
Accrued leave pay
Other payables
Total

2015
R

2014
R

3,462,628

3,241,482

10,531,382

12,260,955

1,963,152

2,161,547

433,628

840,929

3,093,191

2,762,887

19,483,981

21,267,800

Fair value of trade and other payables
The accounts payable are interest free and unsecured. The fair value of accounts payable approximates the carrying value as the amounts payable are shortterm in nature and do not fluctuate based on external factors.

15. Financial liabilities by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:
2015
R

2014
R

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

Total

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

Total

Finance lease liabilities

1,000,620

1,000,620

563,195

563,195

Accounts payable

6,989,447

6,989,447

6,845,298

6,845,298

Total

7,990,067

7,990,067

7,408,493

7,408,493

16. Revenue
2015
R

2014
Restated
R

Approved training centres

2,491,117

2,282,410

Entrance and administration fees

1,507,597

1,625,161

42,088,352

37,049,606

1,640,252

2,147,404

Technical income

243,941

205,308

Other revenue

102,179

163,787

48,073,438

43,473,676

Membership fees
Professional evaluation

Total
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17. Other income
2015
R

2014
R

776,098

1,520,123

8,097,790

7,291,701

Insurance proceeds

28,700

2,306

Profit on sale of fixed assests

22,225

-

2,233,533

-

839,750

-

658

-

11,998,754

8,814,130

Advertising
CPD income

Claims performance credit
Project Achiever income
Other income
Total

18. Operating surplus/(DEFICIT)
Operating surplus/(deficit) for the year is stated after accounting for the following:
2015
R

2014
R

Premises - contractual amounts

142,228

211,831

Equipment - contractual amounts

130,024

117,563

272,252

329,394

Amortisation on intangible assets

166,753

213,123

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

545,362

680,700

18,497,417

18,238,056

865,400

1,034,425

1,059,095

1,721,859

-

10,581

2015
R

2014
R

2,332,256

960,886

2015
R

2014
R

78,077

69,295

Operating lease charges

Employee costs (excluding defined contribution funds below)
Amount expensed in respect of defined contribution funds
Increase in provision for impairment of debtors
Loss on disposal of assets

19. Investment revenue
Interest revenue
Bank

20. Finance costs

Finance leases
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21. Taxation
No provision has been made for taxation for 2015 as the Institute is exempt from income tax in terms of Section 30 and 10(1)(cN)
of the Income Tax Act.

22. Auditors’ remuneration
2015
R

2014
R

223,052

243,218

2015
R

2014
R

10,176,020

624,669

Depreciation and amortisation

712,115

893,821

(Profit) Loss on sale of assets

(22,225)

10,581

Interest received - investment

(2,332,256)

(960,886)

78,077

69,295

1,704,575

(1,108,206)

(1,783,819)

5,023,169

8,532,487

4,552,443

2015
R

2014
R

ARC

52,853

66,214

Board

489,752

389,428

98,278

262,559

EXCO

238,814

163,700

HRC

44,555

24,158

IC and DC

184,550

73,786

RADAC

391,257

290,219

SEC

50,067

21,112

TECHCOM

58,582

96,893

435,409

629,473

2,044,117

2,017,542

Fees
23. Cash generated from operations

Surplus for the year
Adjustments for:

Finance costs
Changes in working capital:
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Total

24. Committee expenses

EDCOM

Legislative projects and other
Total

25. Contingencies
Claims
Legal proceedings have been initiated against the Institute by one of its members during 2013. The Institute has set the matter down for finalisation. The
estimated potential liability is R400,000.

26. ReLATED PARTIES
Please refer to note 27 and note 29 for details of related parties information.
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27. Key Management Emoluments
2015
R

2014
R

Short-term benefits

5,438,395

3,071,671

Termination benefits

2,450,000

-

7,888,395

3,071,671

Executives and key management

28. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified.
The Institute pays an insurance premium for Professional Indemnity insurance on behalf of its members. In prior years this premium was
deducted from member income received. As from the current year, this Professional Indemnity insurance cost is seperately disclosed.
The effects of the reclassification are as follows:
2015
R

2014
R

Amount previously disclosed

-

37,868,413

Reclassification

-

5,605,263

Restated amount

-

43,473,676

Amount previously disclosed

-

31,444,343

Reclassification

-

5,605,263

Restated amount

-

37,049,606

Amount previously disclosed

-

-

Reclassification

-

(5,605,263)

Restated amount

-

(5,605,263)

Amount previously disclosed

-

44,449,006

Reclassification

-

5,605,263

Restated amount

-

50,054,269

Amount previously disclosed

-

(39,896,563)

Reclassification

-

(5,605,263)

Restated amount

-

(45,501,826)

Revenue

Membership fees

Professional Indemnity insurance

Cash receipts from members

Cash paid to suppliers
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29. REMUNERATION OF THE BOARD
Board

ARC

RADAC

EXCO

EDCOM

TECHCOM

Other Other board non-board
related
related

Total

2015
S Abass

10,000

-

-

-

-

-

6,000

-

16,000

C S Dibete

43,320

-

5,000

36,500

-

-

20,000

-

104,820

P T Kubheka

29,500

-

-

18,500

-

-

-

-

48,000

K Naicker1

20,000

-

2,333

-

5,500

2,000

6,000

36,400

72,233

R Naidoo

2

15,500

7,000

-

-

-

-

6,000

-

28,500

N Ntsinde

22,000

-

-

6,000

-

-

29,500

-

57,500

S Olsen

2

15,500

-

-

14,000

-

-

15,000

-

44,500

A Parker

27,500

-

5,000

34,500

-

-

13,500

1,800

82,300

P Pieterse1

20,000

-

7,000

-

-

-

8,000

-

35,000

11,500

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

11,500

A Ramikosi

14,000

11,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,000

H Salie

13,500

-

-

-

-

-

7,500

13,050

34,050

V Sangoni

16,000

-

-

-

-

-

8,000

-

24,000

M O Seedat

25,500

-

5,000

32,500

-

-

16,559

2,000

81,559

B Tamba

27,500

-

-

-

-

-

6,000

-

33,500

Y Yasseen1

20,000

2,000

-

-

7,000

-

-

111,650

140,650

331,320

20,000

24,333

142,000

12,500

2,000

142,059

164,900

839,112

1

H Pretorius

2

2

Total

2014
C S Dibete

16,000

3,500

5,000

19,500

-

3,500

8,000

-

55,500

P T Kubheka

20,000

-

-

7,000

-

-

8,000

-

35,000

R Naidoo

16,000

5,000

-

-

-

-

17,000

-

38,000

N Ntsinde

20,000

-

-

-

-

-

7,000

-

27,000

S Olsen

22,000

-

5,000

23,000

3,500

-

31,250

3,500

88,250

A Parker

20,000

-

5,000

16,000

-

-

10,000

1,800

52,800

H Pretorius

16,000

7,000

-

-

-

-

-

1,100

24,100

A Ramikosi

18,000

1,500

-

-

-

-

-

-

19,500

H Salie

20,000

-

-

7,000

-

-

11,500

41,200

79,700

V Sangoni

16,000

-

-

-

-

-

2,000

-

18,000

M O Seedat

20,000

-

5,000

16,000

-

-

28,000

-

69,000

B Tamba

12,000

-

-

-

-

-

6,000

-

18,000

216,000

17,000

20,000

88,500

3,500

3,500

128,750

47,600

524,850

Total

1
2

Appointed during 2015
Retired during 2015
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30. Risk management
Capital risk management
The Institute has no externally imposed capital requirements.
Financial risk management
The Institute’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk.
Liquidity risk
The Institute’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The Institute manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of
future commitments and credit facilities.
Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored.
The table below analyses the Institute’s financial assets and financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances
due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.
At 31 December 2015

At 31 December 2014

Less than 1 year

Between 1 and 5 years

-

220,426

-

254,870

Accounts receivable

1,528,574

-

3,463,836

-

Bank balances

4,582,861

-

8,041,034

-

28,917,281

-

15,380,112

-

8,890

-

5,917

-

(402,746)

(597,874)

(250,391)

(312,804)

(6,989,447)

-

(6,845,298)

-

Other financial assets

Short-term deposits
Cash on hand
Finance lease liabilities
Accounts payable
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Less than 1 year Between 1 and 5 years

Interest rate risk
At 31 December 2015, if interest rates on Rand-denominated borrowings had been 1% higher/lower with all other variables held constant, surplus for the
year would have been R 335,001 (2014: R 228,141) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.
The Institute’s interest rate risk arises mainly from cash and cash equivalents and finance leases.
Cash flow interest rate risk
Financial instrument

Due in less
than a year

Current interest rate

Cash in current banking institutions

0.05%

4,582,861

Short-term deposits

5.60%

28,917,281

Fair value interest rate risk
Financial instrument

Current interest rate

Due in less
than a year

Due in one
to five years

9.50%

402,746

597,874

Finance lease liabilities

Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The Institute only deposits cash with major banks with high quality
credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.
Accounts receivable comprise a widespread membership base. Management evaluates credit risk relating to members on an ongoing basis.
Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:
2015
R

2014
R

220,426

254,870

Accounts receivable

1,528,574

3,463,836

Bank balances

4,582,861

8,041,034

28,917,281

15,380,112

Financial instrument
Other financial assets

Short-term deposits

Price risk
The Institute is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Institute and classified on the statement of financial position as
available-for-sale. The Institute is not exposed to commodity price risk. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Institute
does not hold a significant portion of its assets in equity securities.
If the equity prices had increased/decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant, the surplus for the year would have been
R2,204 (2014: R2,548) lower/higher.
Surplus for the year would increase/decrease as a result of gains or losses on equity securities classified as at fair value through surplus or deficit. Other
components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains or losses on equity securities classified as available-for-sale.
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R

2014
Restated
R

Approved training centres

2,491,117

2,282,410

Entrance and administration fees

1,507,597

1,625,161

42,088,352

37,049,606

1,640,252

2,147,404

243,941

205,308

Note(s)

2015

Revenue

Membership fees
Professional evaluation
Technical income
Other income
16

102,179

163,787

48,073,438

43,473,676

Other income
Advertising

776,098

1,520,123

8,097,790

7,291,701

Insurance proceeds

28,700

2,306

Profit on sale of assets

22,225

-

2,233,533

-

839,750

-

658

-

2,332,256

960,886

14,331,010

9,775,016

(52,150,351)

(52,554,728)

CPD income

Claims performance credit
Project Achiever
Other income
Interest received

19

Expenses (Refer to page 84)
Operating surplus

18

10,254,097

693,964

Finance costs

20

(78,077)

(69,295)

10,176,020

624,669

Surplus for the year
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R

2014
Restated
R

Advertising and exhibitions

(1,895,657)

(2,239,860)

Approved training centres

(1,189,603)

(1,619,536)

Attendance fees

(1,150,797)

(974,703)

(223,052)

(243,218)

(308,553)
(3,858)

(286,837)
(25,787)

(50,663)

(70,000)

CPD expenses

(6,509,634)

(4,860,211)

CoTE expenses

(544,643)

(1,105,734)

Computer expenses

(1,396,282)

(1,404,499)

Consulting and professional fees

(2,407,756)

(2,131,986)

(712,115)

(893,821)

Note(s)

2015

Operating expenses

Auditors remuneration
Bank charges
Board training
Bursaries

Depreciation and amortisation
Donations

22

(2,266)

(200)

(19,362,817)

(19,272,482)

(7,015)

(13,649)

Insurance

(215,592)

(130,847)

Lease rentals on operating lease

(272,252)

(329,394)

Legal expenses

(346,944)

(607,397)

-

(10,581)

(39,683)

(31,009)

Postage

(159,984)

(203,273)

Printing and stationery

(249,991)

(429,370)

Professional evaluations

(954,533)

(906,178)

(6,336,800)

(5,605,263)

(193,808)

(346,682)

(1,059,095)

(1,721,859)

Publications

(658,800)

(1,257,133)

Repairs and maintenance

(344,713)

(171,397)

(12,415)

(18,400)

(387,418)

(558,324)

(26,720)

(287,193)

Employee costs
Entertainment

Loss on disposal of assets
Motor vehicle expenses

Professional indemnity insurance
Promotions
Provision for impairment of debtors

Security
Staff welfare
Strategic operations
Subscriptions

(1,832,487)

(1,280,831)

Telephone and fax

(817,576)

(797,041)

Travel - local

(962,584)

(995,523)

Travel - overseas

(569,299)

(746,168)

Utilities

(341,890)

(377,993)

Venue and catering

(533,656)

(246,434)

Website expenses

(69,400)

(353,915)

(52,150,351)

(52,554,728)

Total

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited.
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